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Introduction

This document sets out the Council's statutory accounts for the financial year ended 31 March
2010. The format accords with both statutory undertakings and the requirements for publication of
financial information set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice (the SORP). A summary of each statement and
its purpose, together with a brief overview of the authority’s financial position is detailed below.
The introduction to this explanatory foreword tries to give readers a brief overview of the most
significant matters reported in the accounts and an explanation in overall terms of the authority’s
financial position. It also contains a commentary on the major influences affecting the authority’s
income and expenditure and cash flow, and information on the financial needs and resources of
the authority.
There have been a few changes this year to how the accounts are presented. The Collection Fund,
which accounts for what is collected in council tax and how it is distributed, now only has the
details of amounts owed that relate to this Council rather than everyone and there are minor
presentation tweaks. The most interesting change is in relation to the disclosures on officer pay.
The notes to the accounts now provide much more information of how much senior staff are paid
and benefits they receive.
This will be the last year the Council’s accounts will be produced in line with the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting. Next year we will be preparing our accounts in line with how most
businesses also prepare their accounts. These rules are known as International Financial
Reporting Standards or IFRS for short. This change will not only make it easier for readers to
compare the Council’s accounts with other businesses but also with other local authorities from
overseas. These changes require considerable effort and cost and, if they had been optional, they
probably would not have been considered as a good way to spend local tax payers’ money.
Financial Environment
As was the case last year the ongoing recession created significant pressures for the Council. On
one hand, the fall in housing activity has resulted in a significant reduction in income from the likes
of planning applications, land searches and building control activity. On the other, the recession
has created additional cost pressures from an increased number of housing benefit applications
and work to help the business community. The other by-product of the recession has been
historically low levels of interest rates. This has affected what the Council can earn from the cash
balances it holds. Since the start of the recession income from this area has fallen by over
£650,000 and returns during 2010/11 are set to more than halve again.
This year the vast majority of Council’s, including East Northamptonshire, have experienced a
deterioration in their pension deficit from last year. The impact is an increase in the pension
liabilities of 57%, this is due to unfavourable financial assumptions coupled with stronger post
retirement mortality assumptions, which serve to outweigh the more favourable asset returns over
the year.
Nationally the recession has lead to an unprecedented deficit in the country’s finances. A deficit
that even before the General Election would have had to have been reduced. Information about
what the new Government are proposing to do to close this deficit is coming to light, but details
about how this will fully affect the Council are unclear.
The Council is determined to ensure that the impact of these financial pressures on front line
services is minimised. As part of the ongoing drive for efficiencies a further £334,000 of savings
this year were found bringing the total over the last three years to around £1.5milion. A Budget
Review Group has been set up which has already found significant savings that will be reaped in
years to come. Finally, a new Value for Money Strategy was agreed during the year and a
programme of service reviews as a result of this is being rolled out. This process is not about
2
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Introduction Cont’d

cutting budgets – it is designed to put the customer at the heart of everything we do and to ensure
that the Council provides the right level of service in the most efficient and cost effective way
possible.
In setting the budget for 2010/11, far more stringent checks and balances have been implemented
on the budgets being put forward for approval. This process not only ensures the correct level of
budget is provided but also ensures that resources are allocated to the priorities of the Council and
the residents of East Northamptonshire. To ensure resources are spent wisely the Council
continues to review the way services are provided.
Activity During the Year
The main project, and the main talking point, of the year has been the Council’s plans to combine
its two leisure facilities in Rushden. With over £2.5million of external funding obtained and
historically low borrowing costs if the Councils is going to secure this type of facility for Rushden
this is the time to do it.
Other highlights of the year included the opening of the Stanwick Lakes Visitor Centre which is not
only a superb leisure facility that will attract visitors into the district but will also be a facility that will
help generations of children learn about nature. Work is underway on a plan for the four towns in
the south of the district, as is work to review how refuse and recyclables are collected in the
district.
In between these major projects the Council has continued to provide high levels of service at a
good cost.
The Council should be proud of its achievements during the year. It continues to spend well below
the national average yet the standard of its services continues to improve. The Council’s latest
Use of Resources external inspection showed that it has steadily improved the manner that the
Council’s resources are managed.
Acknowledgement
The timetable for publishing the accounts is very limited, even with all the substantive changes now
required. As such I am extremely grateful for the continued dedication, effort and support of the
new shared financial services team, and I am happy to acknowledge this. Expectations, like in
previous years, continue to grow but the finance staff respond to these challenges and
subsequently perform to the highest standard.

Robert Austin
Head of Resources
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The Statements

The Statement of Accounting Policies - the purpose of this statement is to explain the basis for the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts.
The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts - identifies the officer who is
responsible for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs.
The Accounting Statements:
Income and Expenditure Account - reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which
the authority is responsible and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from general
government grants and income from local taxpayers.
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance - this statement lists the “other” elements,
in addition to the movement on the Income and Expenditure Account that contributes to the year on
year changes to the General Fund Balance.
The Income and Expenditure Account brings together all of the functions of the authority and
summarises all of the resources that the authority has generated, consumed or set aside in providing
services during the year. However, this accounting basis is currently out of line with the statutory
provisions that specify the net expenditure that authorities need to take into account when setting local
taxes. In order to give full presentation of the financial performance of the Council during the year and
the actual spending power carried forward to future years, the outturn on the Income and Expenditure
Account needs to be reconciled to the balance established by the relevant statutory provisions.
The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance provides the necessary reconciliation.
The note detailing the individual elements of the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance immediately follows the primary statement for ease of reference.
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL) – this statement lists the “other”
elements, in addition to the gains and losses realised in the Income and Expenditure Account that
contributes to the overall financial result for the period.
Balance Sheet – this statement shows the balances and reserves, any level of indebtedness (if
applicable), fixed and net current assets employed in the Council’s operations, together with
summarised information on the fixed assets held.
Cash Flow Statement – this consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash
arising from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.
The Supplementary Financial Statements:
Collection Fund – this statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to nondomestic rates and the council tax, together with illustrating the way these have been distributed to
preceptors and the General Fund.
Annual Governance Statement – identifies the systems that the Council has in place to ensure that
its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is
safeguarded.

4
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Revenue Expenditure

The Council incurred expenditure on its services of £45.045m. The charts detailed below illustrate
the main elements of expenditure, together with how this expenditure was financed.

Where the money was spent £45.385m
6%

15%

Employees £6.802m
Contracts £5.392m

18%

Transfer Payments £21.965m

12%

Capital Charges £8.290
Other Running Expenses £2.936m

49%
Employee costs include not only the salaries paid to staff but also the employer’s overheads
associated with National Insurance and Pensions. The staffing budget is a significant element of the
Council’s revenue budget.

Where the money came from £45.385m
3%
RSG £1.216m

12%

18%

NNDR £5.267m
Council Tax £5.458m

5%

12%

Other Government Grants £23.223m
Fee Income £2.088m
Other Income £8.133m

50%

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) is general grant funding provided by Central Government and
National Non Domestic Rate Grant (NNDR) is the Council’s share of the national Business Rate
income distributed by Central Government.
The Council is responsible for the collection of business rates but is required to pay the sum
collected into a national pool that is then distributed by Government. The Collection Fund shows the
money collected and paid over to the national pool.
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Revenue Expenditure Cont’d

The table detailed below illustrates the General Fund budget and how this compared to the actual
expenditure. This table needs to be read in conjunction with the Income and Expenditure Account,
which shows the Council’s overall budget position.
2008/09

2009/10

2009/10
Budget
£'000

Variance
Actual v
Actual
£'000

Variance
Actual v
Budget
£'000

Actual
£'000

Actual
£'000

1,210

1,491

1,520

281

(29)

9,010
588
1,247
1,755
1

13,170
1,243
1,479
1,568
1

9,291
656
1,331
1,767
(787)

4,160
655
232
(187)
0

3,879
587
148
(199)
788

13,811

18,952

13,778

5,141

5,174

SERVICE EXPENDITURE
Central services to the public
Cultural, environmental and planning
services
Highways, roads and transport services
Housing services
Corporate and democratic core
Non distributed costs
NET COST OF SERVICES

The reasons for the major variances against budget are as follows:
•

•

•

•
•
•

£5,745k increase in the level of capital charges and impairment as a result of valuation of the
fixed assets. As these entries are reversed out on the Statement of the Movement on the
General Fund Balance this variance has no effect on the overall financial position of the
authority.
(£585k) reduction due to the effects of the transactions required for pensions under the
accounting rules known as FRS17. The budget was drawn on the basis of actual cash
payments made, however, the accounts need to be drawn on the basis of liabilities accrued
during the year. As the FRS17 transaction are reversed out on the Statement of the
Movement on the General Fund Balance this variance has no effect on the overall financial
position of the authority.
(£292k) increase in the Government Grants Amortisation Credit. As above, because this is
reversed out on the Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance this variance
has no effect on the overall financial position of the authority.
(£334k) reduction in expenditure from efficiency savings.
(£103k) reduction in expenditure on software licences.
£390k reduction in Planning Delivery Grant due to the change in accounting treatment.

The Revenue Outturn Report 2009/10 presented to our Finance Sub Committee on the 28 June 2010
(available on our web site) provides further details of the variances between budget and actual
expenditure.
The reasons for the major variances against actual are as follows:
•

•
•
•
•
•
6

£5,459 increase in the level of capital charges and impairment as a result of valuation of the
fixed assets. As these entries are reversed out on the Statement of the Movement on the
General Fund Balance this variance has no effect on the overall financial position of the
authority.
(437k) reduction due to effect of the transactions required for pensions under the accounting
rules known as FRS17.
£241k reduction in Government Grants Amortisation Credit.
(£200k) reduction in planning consultancy costs.
(£542k) reduction in expenditure from efficiency savings
(£462K) reduction due to reclassification of Planning Delivery Grant to Government Grants
East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10
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Reserves

The Council has revenue reserves of some £6.415m at 31 March 2010, this balance comprises a
General Fund balance of £1.992m and earmarked revenue reserves of £4.423m. Full details of
reserves are included within the accounts.

5

Capital Expenditure / Financing

The Council originally agreed to a capital programme of £3.207m but actual spending was £2.674m,
£0.533m below budget. An analysis of capital expenditure in 2009/10 and the funding of this
expenditure are illustrated in the charts below.

Capital Expenditure 2009/2010 (£2.674m)
10%

4%
Housing £0.963m

36%

Leisure £0.167m
Other £0.101m
Environment £1.072m
IT Equipment £0.276m
Vehicles £0.095m

40%
6%
4%

Capital Financing 2009/2010 (£2.674m)
Grants £1.551m
Capital Receipts £1.123m

42%

58%
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The slippage in spend was mainly associated with schemes such as Town Centre Regeneration,
Environmental Improvements and Housing projects not coming on stream as soon as originally
envisaged. For full details on variances please refer to the Capital Outturn Report 2009/10 reported
to the Finance Sub Committee on 28 June 2010 (available on our website).
Capital expenditure is met from capital receipts and capital grants, although to meet future plans
the Council will have to borrow. The current capital programme which was approved by the Policy
and Resources Committee on 22 February 2010 sets out spending plans for 2010/11 to 2017/18
totalling £23million. As at 31 March 2010 we have £3.5million in available resources to fund this
plan and we are anticipating to receive a further £12.1million. This leaves a deficit of £7.4million
which will have to be funded from either borrowing or the sale of additional assets. The Council is
currently taking advice on the most advantageous way to fund its capital programme.

6

Further Information

Further information on the Council’s accounts is available from the Head of Resources & OD, East
Northamptonshire Council, Cedar Drive, Thrapston, Northamptonshire NN14 4LZ.
Members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts. The dates available for the
inspection of the accounts will be advertised in the Nene Valley News.
The Audit Commission have published a document titled Councils’ Accounts – Your Rights, this
document contains details about the rights you have to inspect the accounts and the rights of
electors whereby they may also ask questions about or challenge the accounts. This document is
available on the Audit Commissions website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk or alternatively a
copy can be obtained from the Head of Resources & OD, East Northamptonshire Council, Cedar
Drive, Thrapston, Northamptonshire NN14 4LZ.

7

Other documents

The Council produces a number of reports and strategies which say how we intend to tackle local
issues or provide local services. These are published on the Council’s website, www.eastnorthamptonshire.gov.uk and should be read in conjunction with the Councils’ accounts.
Key documents are identified in Appendix 3 of the Local Code of Governance (see pages 79 - 81
of this report).

8
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East Northamptonshire is one of 7 districts making up the County of Northamptonshire. Mainly
rural, with an area of 50,979 hectares, it serves a growing population of 86,743 with 36,831
(households distributed amongst 6 towns and 59 villages). The population has expanded from
76,550 in 2001 and is projected to grow to 96,000 by 2021. The district spans 35 miles north to
south and 15 miles across its widest point.
The larger towns, Rushden, Raunds, Irthlingborough and Higham Ferrers cluster in the south
where the majority of industry is based. Moving north, the rest of the district is predominantly rural
with the smaller market towns of Thrapston and Oundle serving as hubs for the surrounding rural
parishes.
With no natural central core town, our diversity is a major influence on our ambition and focus
because we need to ensure service delivery reflects our differing community needs.
The district is part of two sub-regions in the East Midlands; the Northamptonshire sub-region,
which includes all towns and villages in the county, and the Welland sub-region, which is made up
of East Northamptonshire, the Borough of Melton, the District of Market Harborough, the District of
South Kesteven and the County of Rutland, forming a significant partnership of choice for the
Council.
Depending on where they live, our residents head towards sub regional centres - Milton Keynes
and Northampton to the south, Peterborough and Leicester to the north - for major entertainment,
major purchases and to work - as well as principal towns within a 15 mile radius like Bedford,
Wellingborough, Kettering, Stamford and Corby.
With excellent road communications with the rest of the United Kingdom and Europe, we are well
served by the A14 (M1 A1 link), A45, A605 and A6. Access to the major regional airports at
Stansted, Luton and the East Midlands is easy and although there is no train line running through
the district, Midland Mainline services operate through stations in nearby Kettering and
Wellingborough and GNER and WAGN from Peterborough and Huntingdon. This brings significant
economic development opportunities, with links to the East Coast Container Ports and rail services
via the Eurohub rail freight terminal in Corby and DIRFT in Daventry.
The Council employs 209 full time equivalents. Most are based at our offices in Thrapston but there
are small teams at our Customer Information Centres in Rushden and Oundle.
From the peace and tranquillity of its villages and the hustle and bustle of its market towns, to the
energy and vitality of the larger industrial towns, East Northamptonshire is a community of
contrasts. To discover more about East Northamptonshire visit our web site: www.eastnorthamptonshire.gov.uk
We also have a community portal which covers local news and events:
northantsonline.co.uk

www.east-
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2009/2010

General

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2009/2010 Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).
The Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) specifies the principles and practices of
accounting required to prepare a Statement of Accounts which ‘present fairly’ the financial position
and transactions of the local authority.
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, that is, the Council will continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The accounting convention adopted is historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets.
This statement discloses and explains the basis for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of
transactions and other events in the accounts.

2

Tangible Fixed Assets

Recognition
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets has been capitalised on an
accruals basis. Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised provided that it yields benefits to the Council
for a period of more than one year. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of
fixed assets, which is charged direct to service revenue accounts.
The Council has a general deminimis limit of £5,000 for capital expenditure purposes which results in
the capitalisation of expenditure above that limit as an asset in the balance sheet. Items below this
limit are charged to revenue.
Asset Classifications
Non Operational assets are those held by an authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in
the delivery of services, or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority. All other assets are
held primarily with regard to the delivery of services. Details of the movements between the different
asset classifications are disclosed in Note 24 on page 34.
Impairment
A test for impairment would need to be performed in the following circumstances:
•
•
•
•

A significant decline in the fixed assets market value.
Obsolescence or physical damage.
A change in the statutory or regulatory environment.
A commitment to undertake a significant reorganisation.

As the current economic conditions give rise to a high likelihood for a significant decline in asset value
a test for impairment has been conducted and the results recognised in the accounts. This is
accounted for by:
•
•

where attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits – the loss is charged to
the relevant service revenue account
otherwise – written off against any revaluation gains attributable to the relevant asset in the
Revaluation Reserve, with any excess charged to the relevant service revenue account.

Where an impairment loss is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account but there were
accumulated revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for that asset, an amount up to the
value of the loss is transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

10
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Tangible Fixed Assets cont’d

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing
the asset into working condition for its intended use. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet
using the following measurement bases:
Other Land and Buildings:
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment:
Infrastructure Assets:
Community Assets:
Non-operational assets:

Existing Use Value
Historic cost
Historic cost
Historic cost
Open Market Value

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been material
changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be
credited to the Income and Expenditure Account where they arise from the reversal of an impairment
loss previously charged to a service revenue account.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet and the
receipt from disposal are written off to the income and Expenditure Account as part of the loss or gain
on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all assets with a determinable finite life by allocating the value of
the asset in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected to benefit from their use. Depreciation is
calculated on the opening book value with no charge in the year of acquisition and a full charge in
the year of disposal. The Council has adopted this approach to minimise extensive calculations
and assist in the annual closedown process and is satisfied that it does materially reflect the
pattern of consumption of the economic benefits of the assets.
Depreciation/Amortisation is calculated over the expected life of each asset using the straight-line
method. No depreciation charge has been applied to land or non-operational assets. Assets are
depreciated/amortised as follows:
Buildings: Up to 50 years, depending on the expected life of each property.
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment: Varying periods, according to useful life.
There has been no material change during the period in either the estimate of useful lives or the
estimate of residual values.
Grants and Contributions
Where grants or contributions are received that are identifiable to fixed assets, the amounts are
credited to the Government Grants Deferred Account. The balance is then written down to revenue to
balance the depreciation charges made for the related asset.

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10
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Intangible Fixed Assets

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the
Council is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than one financial year. Such
assets are amortised using the straight line method over their useful economic life.

4

Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets

Service accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year:
•
•
•

Depreciation
Impairment loses attributable to the consumption of economic benefit
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

These charges are reversed from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account so that they do not create a requirement to raise additional council tax.

5

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Previously known as deferred charges, revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute are
payments of a capital nature where no fixed asset is created for the Council, but which may be
properly financed over a period of years. They include private sector renewal grants and advances to
other parties to finance capital investments.
The Council generally writes off revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute to revenue in
the year in which it is created.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources
or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged
in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is no impact on the level of
council tax.

6

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The revenue and capital accounts of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance
with the Code of Accounting Practice and FRS 18 (Accounting Policies). That is, sums due to or from
the Council during the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid in
the year.
An exception is made in respect of expenditure on electricity, gas and telephone where expenditure
on four quarterly accounts has been taken as a proxy for actual expenditure in the year.

7

Stocks and Work in Progress

Stocks are valued as per the Code of Practice and SSAP 9 (Stocks and Long Term Contracts) which
recommends that stock is carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

8

Overheads and Support Services

The allocation of central support services follows the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice issued
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, whereby the relationship between the
corporate management of the Council and central support given to services is clearly identified and
charged to the appropriate cost centres. The total absorption costing principle is used with the full cost
12
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2009/2010

of overheads and support services shared between service accounts in proportion to the benefits
received.

9

Provisions

The Council has to set aside as provisions sums to meet known liabilities, where the amount or timing
is uncertain. Provisions are charged to the appropriate service account in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the likely settlement. When payments
are made they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Details are shown in Note
27.
The Council makes provision for bad and doubtful debts and the amount of debtors is reduced
accordingly. Details of the bad debt provisions are shown in Note 18.

10

Reserves

The Council maintains certain reserves to allow specific future objectives to be financed, it also retains
general balances to allow for contingencies. These reserves have been established using revenue
resources and are therefore available for revenue and/or capital expenditure, and details of these
reserves are shown in Note 28. Capital receipts cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure they
can only be used to finance capital expenditure.

11

Pensions

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme which is
accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
•

Liabilities of the scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected
earnings for current employees

•

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate of 5.5%

•

The assets of the scheme attributable to the Council are included at their fair value:

•

o

quoted securities – current bid price

o

unquoted securities – professional estimate

o

unitised securities – current bid price

o

property – market value.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:
o

current service cost – the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned this
year – allocated in the Income and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of
services for which the employees worked

o

past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Net Cost of
Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs

o

interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year
as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to Net Operating Expenditure in
the Income and Expenditure Account
East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10
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o

expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets
attributable to the council, based on an average of the expected long-term return –
credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account

o

gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the
council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of
benefits of employees – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and
Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs

o

actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses

o

contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund.

The Income and Expenditure account is charged with the cost of the benefits that have accrued
during the year and not the actual amount paid by the Council. General Fund balance however is
charged with the actual amount paid and adjustments are made in the Statement of Movement on the
General Fund Balance and the pensions Reserve to this effect.
The Council is able to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirement. Where applicable these are accounted for in the year that the decision is made and are
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

12

Government Grants and Contributions

Applications for grants are made to the appropriate organisation whenever they become available.
These grants are appropriated to the relevant revenue account or capital scheme on which the
expenditure was incurred. Where a capital grant has resulted in the creation of a capital asset, the
grant is written down over the expected useful life of the asset, the grant is not written down in the
year it is received. Revenue grants are matched to the expenditure to which they relate. Whether
paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and other contributions and
donations are recognised in the accounts on the date that the grant conditions have been satisfied.
Service specific grants are matched in the revenue accounts against the service expenditure they
relate to. General grants are credited to the Income and Expenditure Account and shown after Net
Operating Expenditure.

13

Leasing

The council accounts for leases as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards relating
to the leased property transfer to the council. Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases
are accounted for as operating leases.
On occasion the Council obtains the use of equipment by means of operating leases. The leasing
charges are debited to the relevant revenue account for each year as they fall due.
The Council acts as lessor for industrial and commercial rented units. These units meet the definition
of operating leases as above.
The Council had no finance leases in 2009/2010 or 2008/2009.

14

Financial Instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another. There are two types of Financial Instruments,
14
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Statement of Accounting Policies

2009/2010

Primary Financial Instruments, such as bonds, currency and stock and Derivative Financial
Instruments whose value is derived from an underlying asset.
The Council recognises an asset or liability on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Council has identified that its Financial
Instruments of a material nature comprise trade receivables, trade payables, cash and
investments.
Investments shown in the Balance Sheet relate to cash deposits. The value of cash deposits is the
principal amount invested.
Financial assets are classified into two types; loans and receivables and available-for-sale assets.
Receivables are measured for at fair value and appear in the balance sheet at the amortised cost.
Available for sale assets are measured and carried at fair value. The Council has a number of loans
outstanding with employees and Parish Council’s of £128k with no consideration, under FRS 25 these
should be measured at fair value. Consideration has been given by the Council to this calculation but
has not recognised this movement within accounts as it is not material.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.

15

Group Accounts

Local authorities are required to comply with the requirement that, where they have a controlling
interest in subsidiaries, or a significant influence within associated companies or joint ventures,
they must prepare the Revenue Account and Balance Sheet on a consolidated basis bringing
together the financial results for the whole group. The Council has reviewed its activities and
concluded that group accounts do not apply.
The Council has determined that it has a Joint Arrangement Non-Entity (JANE) relationship with the
Joint Planning Unit; however the Council’s share of costs were not considered to be material and
have not been reflected in the statement of accounts as required by the SORP

16

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes to the Accounting Policies adopted by the Council other than those
statutory amendments emanating from the revisions associated with the 2009 SORP, which are as
follows:
• Collection Fund – This has been changed so that the respective transactions in the Income
and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statements now only show the
amounts relating to the Council’s own transactions and not the proportions of amounts
owed to others (i.e. the County or Police share of unpaid Council tax).

17

•

Disclosure of Senior Officer Remuneration – previously shown in salary bandings and just
the number of officers in those bandings. It is now required to show the job title of each
officer along with a greater level of detail on their remuneration (see note 8).

•

Removal of several minor notes to the Statement of Accounts

VAT

Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT that is collected by or recoverable from
HM Revenue and Customs.

18

Interest

All interest is credited or debited to the General Fund.
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Statement of Responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts
1

2009/2010

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The authority is required to:
•

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that
officer is the Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer).

•

Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient, and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

•

Approve the statement of accounts.

2

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Executive Director is appointed Chief Finance Officer and is responsible for the preparation of
the authority’s statement of accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the
SORP).
In preparing this statement of accounts the Executive Director has:
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

•

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent

•

complied with the local authority SORP

The Executive Director has also:
•

kept proper accounting records which were up to date

•

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

•

ensured that an effective system of internal financial control is maintained and operated

3

Certificate

I hereby certify that the statement of accounts presents true and fair view the financial position of
East Northamptonshire Council as at 31 March 2010 and its income and expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2010.
These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements authorised at the meeting of
the Audit and Risk Committee on 29 June 2010.
East Northamptonshire Council
Cedar Drive
Thrapston
Northamptonshire
NN14 4LZ
Mark Lovell

Chief Finance Officer

Email:finance@east-northamptonshire.gov.uk

22nd September 2010
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Income and Expenditure Account

2009/2010

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing
services and managing the council during the last year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and
related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets
actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the
year.
2008/2009
Restated

2009/2010
Note

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Income
£’000

Net
Expenditure
£’000

2,160
16,164

(669)
(2,994)

1,491
13,170

1,554

(311)

1,243

23,894
1,612
1
45,385

(22,415)
(44)
0
(26,433)

1,479
1,568
1
18,952

Service Expenditure

1,210
9,010
588
1,247
1,755
1
13,811
(94)
1,833
(33)
(1,143)
569
14,943
(5,176)
29
(820)
(5,525)
3,451

Central services to the public
Cultural, environmental and planning
services
Highways, roads and transport
services
Housing services
Corporate and democratic core
Non distributed costs
Sub-total: Net cost of Services
Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Precepts of local precepting
authorities
Adjustment to Provision for Bad
Debts
Interest payable and similar charges
Interest and investment income
Pensions interest cost and expected
return on pensions assets
Sub-total: Net Operating
Expenditure
Income from the Collection Fund
Transfer from Collection Fund in
respect of surplus
Government grants (not attributable
to specific services)
Distribution from non-domestic rate
pool
Total: Deficit for the year

1

(620)
1,962
3

31

4
(472)
905
20,734
(5,458)

3

40
9
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(1,865)
(5,267)
8,184
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Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance

2009/2010

The Income and Expenditure Account shows the council’s actual financial performance for the
year, measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months.
However, the authority is required to raise council tax on a different accounting basis, the main
differences being:
•

Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are
consumed.

•

Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and
pensioners, as opposed to when future benefits are earned;

The General Fund Balance compares the council’s spending against the council tax that it has
raised for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to
reserves earmarked for future expenditure.
The reconciliation summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure
Account and the General Fund Balance.
2008/2009
Restated
Net
Expenditure
£’000

Note

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory
proper practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund
Balance for the year
Adjustment to General Fund Balance due to rounding on the
2007/2008 Statement of Accounts
Decrease/(Increase) in General Fund Balance for the Year

8,184
(7,245)

(2,829)

General Fund Balance brought forward

(2,931)

(2,931)

General Fund Balance carried forward

(1,992)

(2,931)

Amount of General Fund Balance generally available for
new expenditure

(1,992)

3,451
(3,555)
2
(102)
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Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance

2009/2010

Note of reconciling items for the Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance
The following statement provides the detail behind the movement on the General Fund
balance, analysed between those items that are either included or excluded by statute and
non-statutory proper practices to be credited or debited to the General Fund Balance for
the year.
2009/010

Amount included in the Income and Expenditure
Account but required by statute to be excluded
Net
when determining the Movement on the General
Expenditure
Fund Balance for the year
£’000

(111)
(1,376)
1,261
(1,854)
94
(1,476)
(29)
(3,491)

Amortisation of Intangible fixed assets
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
Government Grants Deferred amortisation
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute
Net profit on sale of fixed assets
Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with
FRS 17
Collection Fund Adjustment
Sub-total

Note

2008/2009
Restated

14

Net
Expenditure
£’000

(165)
(6,781)
1,020
(1,345)
620
(1,521)
(11)
(8,183)

Amounts not included in the Income and
Expenditure Account but required to be included
by statute when determining the Movement on the
General Fund Balance for the year
1,055
1,055

Employers contributions payable to the Pension Fund and
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners
Sub-total

1,201
1,201

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that
are required to be taken into account when
determining the Movement on the General Fund
Balance for the year
(1,119)
(1,119)

Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves
Sub-total

(3,555)

Net additional amount required by statute and nonstatutory proper practices to be debited or credited
to the General Fund Balance for the year
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(263)
(263)
(7,245)
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Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL)

2009/2010

The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL) brings together all the recognised
gains and losses of the authority when assessing the financial result for the period. FRS 3
Reporting Financial Performance requires all gains and losses to be included in a Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL) to be shown with the same prominence as the other
primary statements.
2008/2009
£’000
Restated
3,451
(940)
1
2,512

Movements

Note

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
Surplus or deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets
Actuarial (gain)/loss on pension fund assets and liabilities
Any other gains and losses required to be included in the
STRGL
Total recognised (gains) / losses for the year

2009/2010
£’000

8,184
(6,900)
9,678
1
10,963

Total Net Worth
35,306
32,794
(2,512)

20

As at 1 April
As at 31 March
Change in Net Worth
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(32,794)
(21,831)
(10,963)

Balance Sheet

2009/2010

The Balance Sheet summarises the financial position of the Council. It shows the value of the Council’s
assets and liabilities at the year-end.
31.03.2009
Restated
£’000

31.03.2010

2,000
95
1
34,287

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible Fixed Assets
Tangible Fixed Assets
Operational assets:
Other land and buildings
Vehicles, plant, and equipment
Infrastructure assets
Community assets
Non-operational assets
Under Construction
Non-operational assets
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS
OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS
Long term investments
Long term debtors
Mortgages
TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS

101
3,433
11,919
58
82

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks and work in progress
Debtors
Short term investments
Cash in hand
Cash at bank

49,880

TOTAL ASSETS

(1,712)
-

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Bank overdraft

534
28,175
2,512
297
572
101
32,191

48,168

(12,232)
32,794

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Provisions
Government grants/contributions
Liability related to defined benefit
pension scheme
TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES

33,559
(12,232)
(34)
3,883
1
4,686
2,931

RESERVES AND BALANCES
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions reserve
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Usable capital receipts reserve
Deferred capital receipts
Earmarked reserves
General Fund balance

(1,149)
(1,993)

32,794

Notes

£’000

£’000

538
28,824
2,380
297
452

31,953

862
862
33,353

22 to 26
15
16

17
18
15

83
-

83
33,436

95
5,141
10,648
5
15,889
49,325

19

(1,948)
(454)

(2,402)
46,923

27

(937)
(1,925)
(22,230)

(25,092)
21,831

28

31

28

TOTAL NET WORTH
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6,851
27,340
(22,230)
(45)
3,499
1
4,423
1,992
21,831
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Cash Flow Statement

2009/2010

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of revenue and capital cash arising from
transactions with third parties.

Restated
2008/2009
£’000
3,745

0
(870)
(870)

2,244
(11)
(1,384)
(95)
754
3,629

(2,000)
(824)
(913)
(108)

22

Note
NET CASH (INFLOW)/OUTFLOW
FROM REVENUE ACTIVITIES

NET CASH (INFLOW) / OUTFLOW
FROM ALL ACTIVITIES BEFORE
FINANCING
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID
RESOURCES
Movement in long term investments
Movement in short term investments
Movement in Council Tax/NNDR
NET (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CASH

2,993

32

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows – interest paid
Cash inflows – interest received
NET CASH FLOW FROM RETURNS ON
INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF
FINANCE
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grants received
Other capital cash receipts
NET CASH (INFLOW)/OUTFLOW
FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

2009/2010
£’000
£’000

(697)
(697)

1,402
33

(225)
(1,523)
(95)
(441)

34

35
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1,855

(2,000)
(1,271)
2,006
590

Notes to the Accounts
1

2009/2010

Income and Expenditure Account – Detailed Analysis

The introduction of the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP) introduced mandatory
service reporting levels that should be used in all financial statements and publications. The analysis
below provides details of the costs and income attributable to these mandatory reporting levels.
2008/2009

2009/2010

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Income
£’000

1,582
47
157

(562)
-

1,020
47
157

179
194
2,159

(97)
(10)
(669)

82
184
1,490

45
3,423
387
2,304
1,976
61
7
1,061
3,011
384

(120)
(129)
(587)
(669)
(7)
(492)
(155)

45
3,303
258
1,717
1,307
61
7
1,054
2,519
229

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Central Services to the Public
759
32
159
49
211
1,210

Local Tax
Emergency Planning
General Grant, Bequests and
Donations
Local Land Charges
Elections
Total Central Services to the
Public
Cultural, Environmental and
Planning Services

47
1,017
256
317
1,476
80
18
1,059
1,795
198
218
991
480
605
129
324
9,010

Culture and Heritage
Recreation and Sport
Tourism
Open Spaces
Environmental Health
Community Safety
Flood Defence and Land Drainage
Street Cleansing (non highway)
Waste Collection
Community Safety – Crime
Reduction
Building Control
Development Control
Environmental Initiatives
Planning Policy
Economic Development
Community Development
Total Cultural, Environmental and
Planning Services

360
1,239
174
829
683
221
16,165

(204)
(424)
(19)
(18)
(170)
(2,994)

156
815
155
811
513
221
13,171

Highways, Roads and Transport
Services
20
221
346
588

Environment Safety Routine
Maintenance
Parking Services
Public Transport
Total Highways, Roads and
Transport Services

16

-

16

795
743

(1)
(310)

794
433

1,554

(311)

1,243
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Notes to the Accounts
1

2009/2010

Income and Expenditure Account – Detailed Analysis cont’d
2008/09

2009/10

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Income
£’000

Net
Expenditure
£’000

Housing Services
185
32
491
214
325
1,247

Housing Strategy
Housing Advice
Private Sector Housing Renewal
Homelessness
Housing Benefit Payments
Total Housing Services

181
33
1,179
281
22,220
23,894

(29)
(592)
(37)
(21,757)
(22,415)

152
33
587
244
463
1,479

788

(1)

787

824
1,612

(43)
(44)

781
1,568

(26,433)

1
1
18,952

Corporate and Democratic Core
805
950
1,755

Democratic Representation and
Management
Corporate Management
Total Corporate and Democratic
Core
Non-Distributed Costs

1
1
13,811

2

Non-Distributed Costs
Total Non-Distributed Costs
Net Cost of Service

1
1
45,385

Acquired or Discontinued Operations

There have been no acquired or discontinued operations during the year. There are also no
outstanding liabilities in respect of previously discontinued operations.

3

Prior Period Adjustments

From the year commencing 1 April 2009, the Council regulation has changed regarding the Council
as an “agent” for the precepting Authorities and Central Government. This means that the NNDR
and Council Tax income included in the Income and Expenditure Account for the year shall only be
the Council’s share of the accrued income for the year (and the amount received for the cost of
billing).
The Collection Fund Statement will still disclose information for each preceptor’s share of the
accrued Council Tax and NNDR collected for Central Government, as shown on pages 50 to 53 of
these accounts.
This change to the Councils accounting policy is material, which the SORP requires prior period
adjustments. These adjustments will affect the Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised Losses and the Cash Flow Statement.
The prior period adjustments relating to NNDR and Council Tax are detailed below:
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2009/2010

National Non Domestic Rates
As at 31st March 2009, the Council originally had the following balances in its Balance Sheet
relating to NNDR collection:
Non Domestic Rates PPA

Arrears
Allowance for bad debts
Overpayments and
prepayments
Total Central Government
Creditor

31st March
2009
£’000
369
(93)
(106)

Prior Period
Adjustment
£’000
(369)
93
106

(442)

(170)

Restated
31st March 2009
£’000
-

(272)

The prior period adjustment is effected by deleting the above balances and replacing them with a
credit for central government of £272k.
Council Tax
At 31 March 2009, the council originally had the following balances in the top half of the Balance
Sheet relating to Council Tax collection for Northamptonshire County Council and
Northamptonshire Police Authority:
Council Tax PPA

Arrears
Allowance for bad debts
Overpayments and
prepayments
Other Local Authorities
Total Preceptors Debtor

31st March
2009
£’000
1,161
(518)
(459)

Prior Period
Adjustment
£’000
(1,006)
449
398

Restated
31st March 2009
£’000
155
(69)
(61)

257

(223)
382
-

34
382

At 31 March 2008 and 2009, the council originally had the Collection Fund balances of £(5)k and
£(34)k respectively in the net worth section of the Balance Sheet. The prior period is adjusted by
debiting the Collection Fund and crediting a new account, the Collection Fund Adjustment Account
so that there is no impact on General Fund balances and therefore no impact on Council Tax.

4

Un-discharged Obligations Arising from Long-term Contracts

The authority is committed to making the following annual payments under long-term management
contracts.
Contractor
Cory’s (Waste Management)
Turney Landscapes Ltd
Cultural Community Partnerships (CCP) (Leisure Management)
Rockingham Forest Trust (Facility Management)
Total

£’000
2,424
252
618
10
3,304

The actual level of payments is subject to annual review and performance in providing services.
The Cory’s contract expires in 2010/11, Turney’s 2013/14, the CCP contract ends in 2013/14 and the
RFT contracts run indefinitely until such time as either party serves six months notice to terminate the
agreement .
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Notes to the Accounts
5

2009/2010

Trading Undertakings

There are no significant trading undertakings operated by the Council.

6

Agency Services

The Council has an agency agreement with several Town Councils whereby the Council is
responsible for maintenance work on parks and cemeteries, including a contribution towards
administrative costs. The value of the work undertaken amounted to £280k in 2009/10 (£323k
2008/09).

7

Members’ Allowances

The total amount of allowances paid to elected members during 2009/2010 was £ 271k and £322k in
2008/09. Amounts actually paid to members for the year 2008/09 and 2009/10 are analysed below:
2008/2009
£'000
61
207
6
17
10
17
4
322

8

2009/2010
£'000
53
172
6
16
10
10
4
271

Nature of Expenditure
Special Responsibility
Basic Allowance
Civic Duties
Travel & Subsistence/Others
IT provision
Provision of car for Civic Duites
Conference Fees & expenses
Total

Officers’ Emoluments

The following table shows the number of employees whose annual remuneration, excluding
employer’s pension contributions exceeded £50,000 in 2009/10 and 2008/09. Remuneration means
all amounts paid to or receivable by an employee, and includes sums due by way of expenses,
allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to United Kingdom income tax) and the estimated
money value of any other benefits received by an employee otherwise than in cash.
2008/09
Number of
Employees
6
1
2
0
0
1

Remuneration Band

£50,000 to £59,999
£60,000 to £69,999
£70,000 to £79,999
£80,000 to £89,999
£90,000 to £99,999
£100,000 to £109,999

2009/10
Number of
Employees
7
2
0
1
0
1

The following table summarises the remuneration for Senior Officers whose salary is less than
£150,000 but equal to or more than £50,000 per year. Remuneration means all amounts paid to or
receivable by an employee, and includes sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as
those sums are chargeable to United Kingdom income tax) and the estimated money value of any
other benefits received by an employee otherwise than in cash.
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Pension
Contributions

£

Total
remuneration
excluding
pension
contributions
£

£

2009/2010
Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions
£

247

5,306

107,582

23,416

130,998

78,845

1,548

253

80,646

18,659

99,305

Executive Director (start
date 27/04/09)
Head of Customer
Services
Head of Environmental
Services
Head of ICT

67,643

1,126

236

69,005

15,390

84,395

49,789

336

2,591

52,716

11,402

64,118

56,159

529

2,723

59,411

12,826

72,237

54,292

259

4,886

59,437

12,331

71,768

Head of Organisational
Development
Head of Planning
Services
Head of Policy &
Community
Development
Head of Resources

49,970

312

3,938

54,220

11,402

65,622

56,314

1,261

253

57,827

12,826

70,653

56,130

309

3,729

60,168

12,826

72,994

52,060

322

4,888

57,270

11,858

69,128

Head of Revenue &
Benefit Services

50,046

1,360

253

51,659

11,402

63,061

Chief Executive

97,962

215

5,683

103,860

20,882

124,742

Executive Director

75,706

1,584

735

78,025

16,610

94,635

Executive Director

78,532

1,143

269

79,944

16,610

96,554

Head of Customer
Services
Head of Environmental
Services
Head of ICT

47,400

215

2,667

50,282

10,049

60,331

55,614

298

4,654

60,566

11,756

72,322

51,492

285

6,776

58,553

10,869

69,422

Head of Organisational
Development
Head of Planning
Services
Head of Policy &
Community
Development
Head of Resources

47,580

389

5,120

53,089

10,049

63,138

55,759

1,151

269

57,179

11,756

68,935

53,436

423

3097

56,956

11,303

68,259

50,401

298

4,557

55,256

10,451

65,707

Head of Revenue &
Benefit Services

47,530

1,113

269

48,912

10,049

58,961

Post Title

Salary including
fees &
allowances

Expense
allowances

Benefits
in kind

2009/10

£

£

Chief Executive

102,029

Executive Director

2008/09

9

Related Party Transactions

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the
Council. A ‘related party’ is defined as being an organisation with which the Authority has dealings
and where either officers or members of the Authority have a controlling interest or influence in the
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activities of that organisation. Disclosure allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to
limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.
Related parties and transactions for 2009/10 are set out below:
Central Government
Details of transactions with Government Departments are as follows:
2008/2009
£’000
(769)
(29)
(22)
(820)
(526)
(13)
(3)
(685)
(11)
(3)
(28)
(37)
(131)
(5)
(2,262 )

Revenue Support Grant
Housing and Planning Delivery Grant - Revenue
LABGI
Area Based Grant
Sub-total
Housing Benefits Administration Grant
Discretionary Rent Allowance Grant
NNDR
Housing and Planning Delivery Grant
Housing Defects Grants
Elections Grant
Travellers Grant
Smoke Free Grant
Homelessness
Concessionary Fares
Communities for Health
Planning Policy
New burdens grant
Food Standards Agency
NNDR Deferment Scheme Grant
Total

2009/2010
£’000
(1,216)
(574)
(52)
(23)
(1,865)
(595)
(4)
(31)
(135)
(3)
(17)
(10)
(8)
(12)
(2,680)

Local Authorities
The Council has joint working arrangements with other local authorities for the delivery of the following
services:
2008/2009
£’000
121
Joint Planning Unit

49
29
491
339

Internal Audit
ICT
ICT
Financial Services

Corby Borough Council
Kettering Borough Council
Borough Council of Wellingborough
Northamptonshire County Council
Welland Partnership
Welland Partnership
Borough Council of Wellingborough
Corby Borough Council

2009/2010
£’000
90

58
537
342

The Council hosts the Licensing Unit which is a shared service with Corby Borough Council, Borough
Council of Wellingborough, Kettering Borough Council and Daventry District Council. In 2009/10
expenditure of £266k was incurred and income of £193k.
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Assisted Organisations
The Council gave financial assistance to a number of local organisations and community groups in
which members had an interest. Grants were considered and awarded following proper consideration
and declarations of interest made. Grants over £5,000 were awarded as follows:
2008/09
£’000
51
26
60

Groundwork Northamptonshire
Welland SSP Ltd.
North Northants Development Company

2009/10
£’000
59
50

In February 2001 the Council successfully transferred its housing stock to Spire Homes, a Registered
Social Landlord (RSL). Spire Homes are contracted to carry out Housing Services for the Council, the
value of these contracts for 2009/10 was £246k. The Council makes 5 nominations to Spire Homes
(no selection process) 4 of which are elected members of East Northamptonshire Council.

10

Group Accounts

There are no Group Accounts.

11

Disclosure of Audit Costs

The in-year audit costs relating to external audit and inspection work for both 2009/1009 and 2008/09
are detailed below. These figures show the amounts “chargeable” for each financial year rather than
reflecting the “actual” amounts paid.
2008/2009
£’000
111
-

6
17
5
139

12

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor
National Fraud initiative
NFI Fees 1200/809 2nd instalment
Fees payable to the Audit Commission in respect of statutory
inspection
Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the appointed
auditor.
Total fees relating to external audit and inspection

2009/2010
£’000
108
1

25
134

Capital Financing

The financing of capital expenditure is detailed below.
2008/09
£’000
1,296
2,495
3,791

Capital grants and contributions
Capital receipts
Total

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

2009/10
£’000
1,551
1,123
2,674
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2009/2010

Capital Commitments

There were no significant contracts for capital expenditure outstanding at 31 March 2010.

14

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute amounted to £1,854k in 2008/2009 and
£1,345k in 2009/2010. This expenditure is written off to individual service revenue accounts. It
includes grants made by the Council for the improvement of private dwellings and certain other forms
of capital expenditure, which does not result in the creation of a capital asset for the Council. All such
expenditure in 2009/2010 was written off to revenue in the year.

Improvement Grants
Other
Total

15

Balance at
1 April 2009
£’000
0
0
0

Expenditure in
year
£’000
762
583
1,345

Written off to
revenue in year
£’000
890
455
1,345

Balance at
31 March 20010
£’000
0
0
0

Investments

The Council’s investments are detailed below:
31 March 2009
£’000
11,919
2,000
13,919

16

Short Term Investments < 1 year
Long Term Investments => 1 year
Total Investments

31 March 2010
£’000
10,648
10,648

Long Term Debtors

The value of long term debtors as at 31 March 2010 is:
31 March 2009
£’000
45
50
95

17

Car Loans
Other
Total

31 March 2010
£’000
41
42
83

Stock and Work in Progress

The value of stocks held as at 31 March 2010 are:

31 March 2009
£’000
70
31
101
30

Transport Tokens
Material Stocks
Total

31 March 2010
£’000
58
37
95
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Debtors

Debtors as at 31 March 2010 are:
31 March 2009
£’000
Restated
256
645
582
538
54
700
803
(145)
3,433

31 March 2010
£’000

VAT
Payments in Advance
Housing Benefit Overpayments
Local Taxation
Loans and Mortgages
NNDR Contributions
Government Contribution towards Housing Benefits
Miscellaneous and Sundry Debtors
Less Provision for Bad Debts
Total

127
330
708
674
44
1,821
1,078
502
(143)
5,141

The provisions for bad debts are in respect of the following:
31 March 2009
£’000
Restated
(69)
(58)
(18)
(145)

19

31 March 2010
£’000
Council tax arrears
Housing benefits
General debts
Total

(78)
(50)
(15)
(143)

Creditors

Outstanding creditors due within one year as at 31 March 2010 are:
31 March 2009
£’000
Restated
(334)
(265)
0
(1,113)
(1,712)

20

31 March 2010
£’000
Local taxation
Receipts in Advance
Government Contribution towards Housing Benefits
Miscellaneous and sundry creditors
Total

(61)
(321)
(9)
(1,557)
(1,948)

Operating Leases as Lessee

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment
The Council provides cars to qualifying staff financed under terms of operating leases. The amount
paid under these arrangements in 2009/10 was £6k (2008/09 £8k).
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Other Land and Buildings
The Council occupies part of the Oundle Tourist Information Centre on a short-term lease, which
has been accounted for as an operating lease. The lease commenced August 2007 for 5 years.
The rent payable in 2009/10 was £13k (2008/09 £13k).
The authority was committed at 31 March 2010 to making payments of £26k under operating
leases. The following table breaks down these obligations between asset classifications and
indicates when the associated obligation expires.

Other Land and Buildings

21

Leases Expiring
in 1 Year
£’000
-

Leases Expiring
in 2-5 Years
£’000
26

Leases Expiring
After 5 Years
£’000
-

Operating Leases as a Lessor

The Authority has granted leases for several land and buildings, which are accounted for as
operating leases. They include:
The Pemberton Centre - is a leisure/conference centre leased to Cultural Community Partnerships
(CCP) for 15 years beginning on 1 January 2004 and accounted for as an operating lease. It is
provided as part of the CCP's management contract of ENC's leisure activities. The centre is let on
a peppercorn basis.
Splash Leisure Pool - is a swimming pool leased to Cultural Community Partnerships (CCP) for 15
years beginning on 1 January 2004 and accounted for as an operating lease. It is provided as part
of the CCP's management contract of ENC's leisure activities. The centre is let on a peppercorn
basis.
Nene Community Centre - is a combined wet/dry leisure facility leased to Cultural Community
Partnerships (CCP) for 15 years beginning on 1 January 2004 and accounted for as an operating
lease. It is provided as part of the CCP's management contract of ENC's leisure activities. The
centre is let on a peppercorn basis.
Dove Dale Herne Park, Oundle - is a bungalow leased to the Trustees of Oundle Rural MIND on
an annual renewal basis and is accounted for as an operating lease. Rentals received in 2009/10
were £3.5k (2008/09 £3.5k).
British Legion Hall, Spencer Parade, Stanwick - is a building known as "The Shant”, leased to
Stanwick Parish Council for 99 years beginning on January 2002, and accounted for as an
operating lease on a peppercorn basis.
Rear of 1 to 12 Pound Close, Ringstead - is land leased to Northamptonshire County Council
Education Services for the sighting of portable classrooms and open space for 21 years beginning
in September 1992 and accounted for as an operating lease. Rentals received in 2009/10 were
£100 (2008/09 £100).
Riverside Park, Wharf Road, Higham Ferrers - is land leased to Higham Ferrers Town Council for
use as a Pocket Park for 25 years beginning in September 1982 and accounted for as an operating
lease. Higham Ferrers TC are currently negotiating the tenancy on this land. The land is leased on
a peppercorn basis.
Twywell Hills and Dales, adjacent to A14 junction 11 - is land associated with a former quarry site,
is currently leased to Rockingham Forest Trust on a 399-year lease beginning in May 1997, and is
accounted for as an operating lease for recreational and educational purposes. The land is leased
on a peppercorn basis.
32
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Stanwick Lakes - former sand and gravel works leased to Rockingham Forest Trust on a 125-year
lease starting in October 2002 and accounted for as an operating lease for recreational and
educational purposes. The land is leased on a peppercorn basis.
Industrial Units – 21 units at Enterprise Road, Raunds and Kingsmead, Kings Cliffe are currently
accounted for as operating leases and in 2009/10 income of £95k (2008/09 - £101k) was received.
With regard to the authority’s activity as a Lessor, the gross book value of assets held for use in
operating leases was £18.015m, with accumulated depreciation of £387k as at the 31 March 2010.
The Council has no finance leases.

22

Fixed Asset Valuation

The freehold and leasehold properties, which comprise the Council’s property portfolio, have been
valued as at 1 April 2009 by the Simon Layfield FRICS IRRV, Partner, Wilks Head and Eve LLP,
Newlands House, 40 Berners Street, London, W1T 3NA. The valuations have been made in
accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual.
The Council’s fixed assets are valued in accordance with the Code of Practice as follows:
Intangible Assets:
Other Land and Buildings:
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment:
Infrastructure Assets:
Community Assets:
Non-operational assets:

Historical cost net of amortisation
Existing Use Value
Historical cost net of depreciation
Historical cost net of depreciation
Historical cost net of depreciation
Open Market Value

Valuation

23

Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation/Amortisation is calculated over the expected life of each asset using the straight-line
method. No depreciation charge has been applied to land or non-operational assets. Assets are
depreciated/amortised as follows:
Intangible Assets:
Varying periods, according to useful life.
Buildings:
Up to 50 years, depending on the expected life of each
property.
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment:
Varying periods, according to useful life.
There has been no material change during the period in either the estimate of useful lives or the
estimate of residual values.
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Summary of Movement on Fixed Assets

(5,587)

Impairments

34

Total

Assets Held at Current
Cost – Revalued 2009/10
28,824

28,824

-

28,824

(512)

29,336

28,824

2,380

-

2,380

2,380

(4,077)

6,457

2,380

(681)

328

221

2,512

(3,396)

5,908

£’000

Vehicles, Plant and
Equipment

297

-

297

297

-

297

297

297

297

£’000

452

-

452

452

-

452

452

(120)

572

572

£’000

Community Assets

2009/2010

Infra - structure
Assets
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538

-

538

(1,840)

Accumulated
Depreciation

Assets Held at Historic
Cost Value

2,378

Certified valuation at 31
March 2010

538

538

Net book value of assets
at 31 March 2010

Net book value of assets
at 31 March 2010

(166)

Depreciation in Year

(512)

6,900

Revaluations

Disposals

(328)

176

Transfers

170

Additions

28,175

-

(1,674)

534

28,175

2,208

Net book value of assets
at 31 March 2009

Accumulated Depreciation

Certified valuation at 31
March 2009

£’000

Other Land and
Buildings

£’000

Intangible Fixed
Assets

Movement in fixed assets during the year were as follows:
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862

-

862

862

-

862

862

762

100

100

£’000

Assets Under
Construction

32,815

28,824

4,529

33,353

(6,429)

39,782

33,353

(1,359)

(120)

(5,587)

6,900

-

1,329

32,190

(5,070)

37,260

£’000

Total

Notes to the Accounts
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2009/2010

Information on Tangible Fixed Assets Held

Fixed assets owned by the Council include:
2008/2009
Number of
assets
2
1
2
1
21
2
1
14
7
20

26

2009/2010
Number of
assets
Office Buildings
Depot
Recycling Centres
Commercial Property
Industrial Units
Community / Leisure Centre
Leisure Pool
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Ransom Strips of Land

2
1
2
1
21
2
1
14
7
20

Information on Intangible Fixed Assets Held

Intangible fixed assets held by the Council include:
2008/2009
£’000
534
534
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2009/2010
£’000
Purchased Software licence
Total

538
538

Provisions

Specific provisions as at 31 March 2010 are in respect of:
•

Amenity Grants Provision – a provision has been made for amenity grants that have been
awarded but not claimed.

•

Conservation Grants Provision – a provision has been made for historic building grants that
have been awarded but not claimed.

•

LSVT – this provision has been made to cover potential levy’s following a large scale voluntary
transfer of council houses. As this provision has not been utilised during the financial year, any
provision over 6 years (statutory requirement of length of time to hold a provision), will be
released into the accounts.

•

Planning Provision - this provision has been made to cover a potential compensation claim.

Amenity Grants
Conservation Grants
LSVT
Planning
Total

Balance
1st April 09
£’000
(1)
(25)
(1,118)
(5)
(1,149)

Receipts
In Year
£’000
(27)
(27)

Payments
In year
£’000
7
232
239
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Balance
31st March 10
£’000
(1)
(45)
(886)
(5)
(937)
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Movement on Reserves

Revenue Reserves
The Council has a number of reserves. Some are new whilst others have been built up over a
number of years and are used to finance specific areas of the Council's activities. They can be used
to finance capital or revenue expenditure.
The movement in earmarked revenue reserves in 2009/2010 is detailed below:
Reserve

Movement
2009/2010
£’000

As at
1 April 2009
£’000

As at
31 March 2010
£’000

54
3,576

3,530

(54)
(46)

57
35
100
519
100
120
100
25
4,686

69
504
100
120
100
4,423

(57)
(35)
(31)
(15)
(25)
(263)

Earmarked Revenue Reserves
Service Development Reserve
Asset Management Repairs and Renewals
Reserve
Community Safety Fund Reserve
Planning Delivery Grant Reserve
Concessionary Fares Reserve
Regeneration Reserve
Contingency Reserve
Elections Reserve
Insurance Reserve
Youth Projects Reserve
Total Earmarked Revenue Reserves

Details of the purpose and use of each earmarked reserve as at 31 March 2010 are as
follows.
Service Development Reserve
This was created from recycling credits to facilitate further investment in schemes to improve service
delivery, such as Aiming for Excellence and partnership working.
Asset Management Repairs and Renewals Reserve
Reserve created for the major repair renovation and adaptation of existing assets that will fall upon
the General Fund.
Community Safety Fund Reserve
Established to fund community safety projects.
Planning Delivery Grant Reserve
Created to fund additional planning expenditure.
Concessionary Fares Reserve
Created to smooth the revenue impact of future increases in the cost of this service.
Regeneration Reserve
Created to fund planned regeneration works throughout the district.
Contingency Reserve
Created to fund additional service department items that may arise during the financial year.
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Movement on Reserves cont’d

Elections Reserve
Created to fund the additional costs that will arise during future elections.
Insurance Reserve
Established to cover the excess on insurance policies in the event of a major disaster.
Youth Projects Reserve
Established to fund a Youth Co-ordinator post for an initial three-year period together with a
small annual grants budget.
Movement in revenue resources

Surplus/(Deficit) for 2009/2010

General/
Fund
Balances
£’000
(939)

Earmarked
Reserve
Reserves

Pensions
Reserve

£’000

£’000

(263)

(320)
(9,678)

Appropriations (to)/from revenue
Actuarial gains/(losses) relating to pensions
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2009
Restated

2,931

4,686

(12,232)

Balance carried forward at 31 March 2010

1,992

4,423

(22,230)

Realised Capital Resources
The receipts included within usable capital receipts can be applied to finance new capital expenditure.
2008/2009
Usable
Capital
Receipts
£’000
97
(2,495)
(2,398)

Movement in Realised Capital Resources

Amounts receivable
Amounts applied to finance new capital investment
Total movement of realised capital resources in year

2009/2010
Usable
Capital
Receipts
£’000
740
(1,124)
(384)

6,281

Balance brought forward 1 April

3,883

3,883

Balance carried forward 31 March

3,499
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Movement on Reserves cont’d

Amounts set aside to finance capital expenditure
Revaluation Reserve Account – This account contains unrealised amounts arising from a
revaluation gains arising since 1st April 2007.
2008/2009
Revaluation
Reserve
£’000
0
0

Movement in Revaluation Reserve

Unrealised revaluation gain
Elimination of Historic Cost Depreciation

0

Total movement of realised capital resources in year

0

Balance brought forward 1 April

0

Balance carried forward 31 March

2009/2010
Revaluation
Reserve
£’000
6,900
(49)
6,851
0
6,851

Capital Adjustment Account - This account contains the amount that was required to be set aside
from the capital receipts and the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital
receipts. It also contains the difference between amounts provided for depreciation and the statutory
minimum amount that must be set aside from revenue for the repayment of external debt. The
Council had no external debt, therefore no provision is required.
2008/2009
Capital
Adjustment
Account
£’000
2,495
2,495

(2)
(1,486)
1,261
(227)
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Movements in Amounts Set Aside to Finance Capital
Investment

Capital Receipts Set Aside
Conversion of set aside receipts
Reserved receipts
Useable receipts applied
Total Capital Receipts Set Aside
Revenue Resources Set Aside
Carrying value of assets disposed of in year
Depreciation & Impairment
Elimination of Historic Cost Depreciation
Transfer from Government Grants Deferred Account
Total Revenue Resources Set Aside

2009/2010
Capital
Adjustment
Account
£’000

1,123
1,123

(120)
(6,946)
49
1,020
(5,997)

Write-downs to the CFA
(1,854) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
(1,854) Total Write downs to the CFA

(1,345)
(1,345)

414
33,145
33,559

(6,219)
33,559
27,340

Total Movement in the year
Balance brought forward at 1 April
Balance carried forward at 31 March
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Note to Movement on Reserves cont’d

Developers Contributions
The resources held within Developers Contributions have arisen mainly from Section 106
agreements. Section 106 receipts are monies paid to the Council by developers as a result of the
grant of planning permission where works are required to be carried out or new facilities provided
as a result of that permission. The sums are restricted to be spent only in accordance with the
agreement concluded with the developer. The major balances of section 106 receipts held by the
Council during the year were as follows:

Open Space – Oundle
Open Space – Rushden
Open Space - Irthlingborough
Educational – Oundle
Educational – Rushden
Educational – Thrapston
Educational – Stanwick
Educational – Higham Ferrers
Educational – Irthlingborough
Educational – Raunds
Affordable Housing
Community Facilities - Rushden
Environmental Improvements
Total

29

31 March
2009
£’000
(40)
(18)
(67)
(12)
(35)
(166)
(3)
(56)
(2)
(385)
(87)
(871)

Income
(3)
(11)
(1)
(3)
(24)
(2)
(29)
(73)

Exp.
21
19
38
171
3
58
24
281
29
644

31 March
2010
(40)
(78)
6
5
2
(2)
(104)
(60)
(29)
(300)

Contingent Liability

The Council has been involved in a dispute in relation to continued water damage being experienced
with the roof at the Nene Centre. In April 2010 the Council has taken legal action, if this is not
successful then the Council expect that the costs in rectifying the roof will not be less £250k.
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Post Balance Sheet Events

The Council’s 2009/10 Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue on 18 June 2010 by Mark
Lovell, Chief Finance Officer and was done so after due consideration to any post balance sheet
events at that point in time.
The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced in his Emergency Budget on 22 June 2010 that the
consumer prices index rather than the retail prices index will be the basis for future public sector
pension increases. In accordance with paragraph 21 of Financial Reporting Standard 21 (Events
after the balance sheet date), this change is deemed to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet
event. It is estimated that this change will reduce the value of East Northamptonshire Borough
Council's FRS17 liabilities in the Northamptonshire County Council Pension Fund by around 6-8%.
Following continued uncertainty about the level of cuts to public spending, on 20 July 2010 East
Northamptonshire Council decided to postpone the Manor Park leisure facility until the economic
situation has improved, and to halt all spending on the project. In accordance with paragraph 21 of
Financial Reporting Standard 21 (Events after the balance sheet date), this change is deemed to
be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. There will be no impact on East Northamptonshire
Borough Council’s General Fund Reserve due to this decision as all costs incurred have been
funded through external grants.
East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10
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Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

This year the vast majority of Council’s will find that their pension deficit has deteriorated from last
year. This is because of the impact of unfavourable financial assumptions coupled with stronger
post retirement mortality assumptions, which serve to outweigh the more favourable asset returns
over the year.
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the authority offers retirement
benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the authority has a
commitment to make the payments. The authority participates in the Local Government Pension
Scheme administered by Northamptonshire County Council, which is a funded scheme, meaning that
the authority and employees pay contributions into a fund that are calculated at a level intended to
balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when employees earn them,
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required
to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement
benefits is reversed out in the Statement of Movements in the General Fund Balance. The following
transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement of
Movement in the General Fund Balance during the year:
The amounts in the financial statements at the 31 March 2010 are based on the most recent actuarial
valuation, which was undertaken on 31 March 2007. The underlying assets and liabilities for
retirement benefits attributable to the authority at 31 March are as follows:

31 Mar 2009
£’000

31 Mar 2010
£’000

Net Cost of Services
(907) Current Service (Cost)
- Past Service (Cost)/Gain / Curtailment (Cost)/Gain

(616)
-

Net Operating Expenditure
(2,022) Interest (Cost)
1,453 Expected Return on Assets in the Scheme

(1,941)
1,036

Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local
Taxation
421 Movement on Pensions Reserve

320

Actual amount charged against Council Tax for Pensions in
the year
(1,055) Employer’s contributions payable to scheme

(1,201)

Amount Recognised in Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL)
31 Mar 2009
£’000
1,024
1,024
(6,557)
40

31 Mar 2010
£’000
Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
Increase/(Decrease) in Irrecoverable Surplus from
Membership
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) recognised in STRGL
Cumulative Actuarial Gains and Losses
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Defined Benefit Pension Scheme cont’d

Balance Sheet
The assets values as at 31 March 2010 are at bid value as required under FRS17.
2008/2009
£’000
(12,835)
1,055
(907)
(569)
1,024
(12,232)

Surplus (deficit) in the Fund at the beginning of period
Contributions paid
Current service cost
Other finance income (charge)
Past Service gain / Curtailment cost
Actuarial gain (loss)
Surplus / (deficit) in the Fund at end of period

2009/2010
£’000
(12,232)
1,201
(616)
(905)
(9,678)
(22,230)

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities:
31 Mar 2009
£’000
33,110
907
2,022
331
(6,946)
(55)
(1,105)
28,264

Year Ended:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Contributions by Members
Actuarial Losses / (Gains)
Past Service Costs / (Gains)
Estimated Unfunded Benefits Paid
Estimated Benefits Paid
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

31 Mar 2010
£’000
28,264
616
1,941
336
14,574
(57)
(1,156)
44,518

Reconciliation of Fair Value of the scheme assets:
31 Mar 2009
£’000
20,275
1,453
331
1,000
55
(5,922)
(55)
(1,105)
16,032

Year Ended:
Opening Fair Value of Employer Assets
Expected Return on Assets
Contributions by Members
Contributions by the Employer
Contributions in respect of Unfunded Benefits
Actuarial Gains / (Losses)
Assets Distributed on Settlements
Assets Acquired in a Business Combination
Exchange Differences
Unfunded Benefits Paid
Benefits Paid
Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets

31 Mar 2010
£’000
16,032
1,036
336
1,144
57
4,896
(57)
(1,156)
22,288

The expected return on assets is determined by considering the long term expected returns available
on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments
are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity
investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.
The actual return on the scheme assets in the year 2009/2010 was £5,932m and in 2008/09 was
£(4.484)m.
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Defined Benefit Pension Scheme cont’d

Scheme History

Fair Value of Employer Asset
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation
Surplus/(Deficit)
Experienced Gains/(Losses) on
Assets
Experience Gains/(Losses) on
Liabilities

05/06
£’000
20,829
(29,377)

06/07
£’000
22,084
(29,387)

07/08
£’000
20,275
(33,110)

08/09
£’000
16,032
(28,264)

09/10
£’000
22,288
(44,518)

(8,548)
2,937

(7,303)
(254)

(12,835)
(2,837)

(12,232)
(5,922)

(22,230)
4,896

(1,277)

(67)

(109)

(512)

-

The total contributions expected to be made to the scheme by the council for the year to 31 March
2011 is £1,221m.
Actuarial Assumptions
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the project unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary
levels, etc. The scheme liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent
firm of actuaries, estimates being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March
2007.
The actuarial assumptions used in the calculations are detailed in the tables below:
31 March
2009
% per
annum
3.10
4.60
6.40
6.90

Financial Assumptions

Rate of inflation/pensions
Rate of increase in salaries
Expected Return on Assets
Discount rate

31 March
2009
(Years)

Mortality Assumptions

31 March
2010
% per
annum
3.80
5.30
7.20
5.50
31 March
2010
(Years)

Longevity at 65 for Current Pensioners:
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21.1
24.0

Male
Female
Longevity at 65 for Future Pensioners:

20.8
24.1

22.2
25.0

Male
Female

22.3
25.7
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Defined Benefit Pension Scheme cont’d

31 March
2009
% per
annum
7.00
5.40
4.90
4.00
31 March
2009
% per
annum
70.00
19.00
7.00
4.00

Expected rate of return on assets

31 March
2010
% per
annum
7.80
5.00
5.80
4.80

Split of assets between investment categories

31 March
2010
% per
annum
76.00
16.00
6.00
2.00

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash

History of Experienced Gains and Losses
The actuarial gains indentified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2009/10 can be
analysed into the following categories and measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities as at
31 March 2010:
31st March
Differences between the
expected and actual return on
assets
% of assets
Differences between actuarial
assumptions about liabilities
and actual experience
% of liabilities
Changes in the demographic
and financial assumptions used
to estimate liabilities
% of liabilities
Net Gain / (Loss)
% of liabilities

2006
£’000
2,937

2007
£’000
(254)

2008
£’000
(2,837)

2009
£’000
(5,922)

2010
£’000
4,896

14.0%
(512)

(1.1%)
-

(14.0%)
(1,277)

(36.9%)
(67)

22.0%
(109)

1.7%
(2,287)

0.0%
1,462

(3.9%)
(1,448)

(0.2%)
7,013

0.2%
(14,465)

7.8%
138
0.4%

5.0%
1,208
4.1%

(4.4%)
(5,562)
16.8%

24.8%
1,024
3.6%

(32.5%)
(9678)
21.7%

The information included for all of the pension disclosure is provided by Hyman Robertson LLP, the
Actuary for the Pension Fund. Further information can be found in The Annual Report of the
Northamptonshire County Council Pension Fund available on request from the Pensions Manager,
Northamptonshire County Council, PO Box No. 136, County Hall, Guildhall Road, Northampton NN1
1AT.
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Reconciliation of Revenue Deficit to Net Cash Inflow from Revenue Activities

This reconciliation identifies items included within the revenue accounts, which do not result in cash
flows under the revenue activities in the statement.
Restated
2008/2009
£’000

2009/2010
£’000
TOTAL (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT ON ALL REVENUE ACCOUNTS

3,451
258

Income and Expenditure Account (Surplus) / Deficit
Collection Fund (Surplus) / Deficit

8,184
337

NON CASH TRANSACTIONS
(111)
(1,375)
1,261
94
(1,476)
1,055
(29)
(27)
1
3
(231)

Amortisation charges
Depreciation charges
Government Grants Deferred amortised matching depreciation
Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS 17
Employers contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement
benefits payable direct to pensioners

Collection Fund Adjustment
Movement in stock
Movement in Provision for Bad Debts
Movement in Other Provisions
Net movement in revenue debtors and creditors

(165)
(6,781)
1,020
620
(1,521)
1,201
(11)
(7)
3
212
(796)

ITEMS CLASSIFIED IN ANOTHER CATEGORY IN THE CASH
FLOW STATEMENT
871
3,745

33

NET CASH FLOW FROM REVENUE ACTIVITIES

Capital Grants Received

2008/2009
£’000s
28
294
153
10
61
130
100
223
139
246
1,384

44

Net interest received

Project/Source

2009/2010
£’000s
Youth/NCC
45
Raunds/Irthingborough Environmental Improvement
14
Raunds Enterprise Centre
5
CCTV/NCC
IT/WBC
Manor Park/NCC
682
Greenway Project/NCC
185
Planning Delivery Grant/CLG
Disabled Facility Grant/CLG
150
Decent Homes Grant/CLG
437
Burden Grant/CLG
5
Other
Total
1,523
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Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to the Movement in Net Funds

Cash in hand
Cash Overdrawn

31st March 09
£’000
140
-

Cash flows
£’000
(135)
(455)

31st March 10
£’000
5
(455)

Debts due within 1 year
Debts due after 1 year
Short-term investments
Long-term investments
Movement in CT/NNDR
Balances
Total

11,919
2,000
(1,072)

(1,271)
(2,000)
2,006

10,648
934

12,987

(1,855)

11,132

£’000
Decrease in cash for the period
Cash outflow from short-term deposits
Cash outflow from long-term investments
Cash outflow from decrease in short-term deposits
Cash outflow from decrease in long-term debt
Cash outflow from CT/NNDR
Change in net funds
Net funds 31 March 2009

£’000
(590)
(1,271)
(2,000)
2,006
(1,855)
12,987

Net funds 31 March 2010

11,132
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Reconciliation of Financing and Liquid Resources Sections of Cash Flow
Statement with Balance Sheet

Short-term investments
Movement in CT/NNDR
Balances
Total

36

2008/2009
£’000
11,919
(1,072)

2009/2010
£’000
10,648
934

10,847

11,582

Movement
£’000
(1,271)
2,006
735

Financial Instruments

Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 26 on Financial Instruments was incorporated into the Local
Government accounting regulations in 2007/08. This required organisations to set up two new
reserves as shown below:
Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve: This records nominal changes in values on
investments which have not yet been crystallised through sales. Currently no movements are
shown on this reserve because the Authority has no investments meeting the definition of available
for sale, examples of which include equity shareholdings and quoted investments.
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account: This is a balancing account which shows the difference
between accounting practices and statutory requirements in Local Government for determining the
General Fund balance.
However, there were no transactions required by the Council to travel through these reserves.
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Financial Instruments (cont)

FRS 26 defines financial instruments very broadly so that these cover any cash, debt, equity
investments, debtors and creditors as well as complex instruments such as commodity contracts
and derivatives. The precise definition is detailed below:
“any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity”
FRS 26 puts financial instruments into a number of different categories. Financial instruments that
are liabilities and not held for trading can be defined as “Liabilities at amortised cost”. Liabilities
held for trading are classified as “Fair Value through Profit and Loss”. The liabilities of this authority
that are also financial instruments are all defined “Liabilities at amortised cost”. Local Government
is restricted by statute and regulations in its treasury management activities and highly unlikely to
hold liabilities for trading purposes.
The Liabilities at amortised cost for East Northamptonshire Council are shown in the table below:

2008/09
£’000
1,113 Creditors

2009/2010
£’000
1,557

Financial instruments that are assets are defined as either “Loans and Receivables” or “Available
for Sale assets”.
“Available for Sale assets” are in effect securities that are quoted on an active market. The
effective rate of interest is credited to the Income and Expenditure account and changes in value
shown in the Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve. The Authority has no such financial
instruments.
Loans and receivables are defined as financial assets that have fixed payments but are not quoted
in an active market, such as debtors and bank deposits. These are carried at amortised cost and
income in the Income and Expenditure account calculated using the effective rate of interest.
Loans and receivables for East Northamptonshire Council are shown in the table below:

2008/09
£’000
2,000
1
951
11,919

Long-term investments
Mortgages
Debtors
Short-term investments

2009/2010
£’000
629
10,648

Local Authorities sometimes make loans to organisations at less that market rates where this
supports their objectives. These are known as Soft Loans. FRS 26 and Local Government
accounting practices requires that where material, the loss in interest is treated as an impairment in
the value of the loan and the cost of the impairment is shown in the Income and Expenditure
Account. However, statutory rules are that until 2010/11, this cost is removed when calculating the
General Fund balance. The cost is removed using the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.
Soft Loans for East Northamptonshire Council total £128k, which is immaterial to the accounts so
no adjustment is required through the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.
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Financial Instruments (cont)

Key Risks
As part of implementing FRS 26, Local Authorities should have due regard for the risks associated
with the financial instruments that they hold.
Attention to risk by the Authority is enabled in a number of ways. The Authority adheres to the
Local Government Act (2003) and supporting regulations in following the Prudential Code. This
requires the Authority to publish Prudential Indicators which measure the level and affordability of
its borrowing. These Prudential Indicators are agreed by Council and measure:
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
Net borrowing requirement
Capital Financing Requirement
Authorised limit for external debt
Operational boundary for external debt
The authority has no actual borrowing in 2009/10 and future plans have been assessed as
affordable under the Prudential Code.
Further the Authority has a Treasury Management Strategy in order to minimise risk when lending
out money or borrowing, for instance by establishing criteria for selecting counter-parties. The
Authority also follows Treasury Management best practice as outlined by Chartered Institute of
Public Finance Accountancy, in order to reduce risk.
Credit Risk
The Authority always runs the risk that debtors do not make payments. Wherever possible, the
authority provides services at the point of payment. Risk of non-payment is also reduced by
procedures to monitor, measure debts and pursue debts on behalf of the authority. The Authority
monitors debts using aged debtor reports, reviewing how long debt has been outstanding.
Another type of credit risk is the risk that the Authority deposits money with financial institutions
that fail. The Treasury Management Strategy outlines procedures to minimise this risk when
selecting Counter-parties. The Authority held no money with Icelandic banks in 2008/09.
Analysis of financial asset by credit rating at year end
Gross Credit
Exposure by credit
rating at year end
(before collateral held
or other credit
enhancements)
Cash and liquid
deposits
Loans and receivables
carried at amortised
cost
Available-for-sale
financial assets carried
at fair value
Total financial assets

AAA or
equivalent

AA or
equivalent

A or
equivalent

Rated not
strong

Not
rated

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

10,648

10,648

-

-

10,648

-

-
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Financial Instruments (cont)

Analysis by geographical area at year end
Gross Credit
Exposure by
geographic area
(before collateral held
or other credit
enhancements)
Cash and liquid
deposits
Loans and receivables
carried at amortised
cost
Available-for-sale
financial assets carried
at fair value

UK

Europe

Africa

Asia

Other

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

7,139

3,509

10,648

-

-

Total financial assets

7,139

3,509

-

-

-

10,648

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority runs out of cash to manage its day to day cash-flow. To
minimise this risk, the Authority monitors and anticipates future cash flows in order to plan for
sufficient cash.
The Authority has debt collection procedures to ensure that it receives the money owing. Revenue
and capital budgets are fully financed as per Local Government regulations and agreed by Council
before the start of the financial year. The Authority also has an overdraft facility with its bank in
order to manage any short-term timing differences.
Refinancing Risk
Refinancing risk is the risk that when renewing a financial instrument, for example a loan, the terms
deteriorate.
Currently the Authority does not have any outstanding loans so this risk does not apply.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of financial loss arising from market movements, for example interest rate
movements.
The reduction in interest rates in 2009/10 reduced interest income received by the Authority. This
risk is mitigated for future years. Budgets have been set, taking low interest rates into
consideration. Also interest rates are at the bottom of the cycle, which means in effect that they
cannot fall much further.
Price Risk
This is a risk that there is a change in the value of quoted investments. Excluding the Pension
Fund, the Authority does not invest in securities and equities with this type of risk. It should be
noted that the council does not manage the pension fund. This is done by Northamptonshire
County Council.
Foreign Exchange Risk
This is risk of fluctuations in the value of foreign currency. The Authority has no financial assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies so this risk does not apply.
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Net Assets Employed

This note shows the assets (both capital and revenue) attributable to the General Fund
Net Assets Employed

General Fund

31 March 2009
£’000

31 March 2010
£’000

32,794

21,831

32,794

21,831
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This account reflects the statutory requirements of billing authorities, like East Northamptonshire
Council, to maintain a separate Collection Fund, which shows the transactions of the billing
authority in relation to non-domestic rates and the council tax, together with illustrating the way
these have been distributed to preceptors and the General Fund. The Collection Fund is
consolidated with other accounts of the billing authority.
2008/2009
£’000
35,060
3,792

Notes
INCOME
Income from Council Tax
Transfers from General Fund
Council Tax benefits

21,256

Income collectable from business
ratepayers

60,108

TOTAL INCOME

2009/2010
£’000
£’000
36,380
4,319

40,699

21,076

21,076

61,775

EXPENDITURE
Precepts and demands from County,
Police and District
28,490
5,323
5,176

Northamptonshire County Council
Northamptonshire Police Authority
East Northamptonshire Council

3
3
3

29,800
5,600
5,458

40,858

20,765
103

20,868

208
142

350

Business rate
20,898
102

Payment to the national pool
Cost of collection
Bad and doubtful debts/appeals

257
80

Provisions:
Non Domestic Rates
Council Tax
Contributions

-

60,326
218
40
258

50

Towards previous year’s estimated
Collection Fund surplus

4

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
MOVEMENT ON FUND BALANCE

(220)

61,856
81

FUND BALANCE B/FWD
(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT

256

FUND BALANCE AT YEAR END

337
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Council Tax Base

Domestic properties within the District are banded from A to H according to their value as at 31
March 1992. The numbers of properties in each banding are then converted into Band D
equivalents using a multiplier and totalled to give a tax base. The Band D equivalents for
2009/2010 and 2008/2009 are detailed below:
Tax Band

Band D
Multiplier

Number of
Domestic
Properties

Band D
Equivalent

Band D
Equivalent

2009/2010

2009/2010

2008/2009

Disabled

5/9

6

3

3

A

6/9

7,659

5,106

5,070

B

7/9

8,871

6,899

6,831

C

8/9

5,216

4,636

4,646

D

9/9

4,472

4,472

4,365

E

11/9

3,262

3,987

4,049

F

13/9

2,007

2,899

2,849

G

15/9

1,205

2,008

2,006

H

18/9

115

230

221

30,242

30,040

Non Collection Provision
(0.8%)
Tax Base

2

(240)
30,000

Income from Business (Non-Domestic) Rates

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, which are based on local rateable values
multiplied by a national uniform rate set by the Government, for industrial and commercial premises.
The total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid to a national central pool managed
by the Government. The pool is then distributed to councils based on a standard amount per head of
population. Although the Council paid over £20,765m as per treasury schedule into the pool for the
year, the amount distributed to it was only £5.526m.
The total Non-Domestic rateable value at 31 March 2010 was £ 52,855m. The equivalent figure for
31 March 2009 was £52.540m.
The National Non-Domestic rate multiplier for 2009/2010 was 48.5p. The equivalent figure for
2008/2009 was 46.2p. The Small Business Rate Multiplier for 2009/10 was 48.1p. The equivalent
figure for 2008/09 was 45.8p.
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Precepts and Demands

Northamptonshire County Council and the Police Authority issue precepts to the Council that must be
collected as part of the overall Council Tax. The Council itself also “demands” an amount to be
collected. The amounts paid in 2009/2010 and 2008/2009 were as follows:
2008/2009

2009/2010

£’000

£’000

Northamptonshire County Council

28,490

29,639

Northamptonshire Police Authority

5,323

5,570

East Northamptonshire Council

5,176

5,429

Total Precepts and Demands

38,989

40,638

4

Collection Fund Surpluses

The precepts detailed at note 3 are shown net of the previous years’ surpluses/(deficits). The Council
estimates the year end Collection Fund balance in January each year. The estimated balance is
distributed in the following financial year between Northamptonshire County Council,
Northamptonshire Police Authority and East Northamptonshire Council in proportion to the value of
the respective precepts and demands made by the three Authorities on the Collection Fund. The
estimated surpluses/(deficits) were distributed as follows:
2008/2009

2009/2010

£’000

£’000

Payment of surplus:
Northamptonshire County Council

0

Northamptonshire Police Authority

0

(161)
(30)

East Northamptonshire Council – Council Tax

0

(29)

Total Surplus

0

(220)
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Collection Fund Balance

The balance on the Collection Fund at the 31 March 2010 of £337k (2009 - £258k ) only relates to
Council Tax.
As a result of changes required within the 2006 SORP it is now a requirement for the billing authority
to show only the Collection Fund balance which is attributable to the billing authority in the balance
sheet. The remainder, associated with the precepting authorities, should be disclosed as either
debtors or creditors within the other sections of the Balance Sheet. Previously, there was no
requirement to disaggregate the year-end Collection Fund balance.
Billing authorities need to advise precepting authorities what the estimated year-end balance on their
Collection Fund will be on the 15 January each year. Therefore, in calculating the year-end balance
for 2009/10, the Council wrote to both Northamptonshire County Council and the Northamptonshire
Police Authority on 16 January 2009 advising them that our estimated year-end balance for 2009/10
would be £133k . The actual balance at 31 March 2010 was £337k. The difference has been allocated
between the authorities based on the demands placed on the Council’s Collection Fund for 2010/11.
The allocation of the year-end balance is as follows:
2008/2009
£’000

2009/2010

Movement

£’000

£’000

Northamptonshire County Council

189

246

58

Northamptonshire Police Authority

35

46

11

East Northamptonshire Council – Council Tax

34

45

11

258

337

80

Total Deficit

6

Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Provision has to be made for amounts due which become uncollectible and are subsequently written
off in respect of Community Charge, Non Domestic Rates, and Council Tax. Details of the provisions
for bad debts are shown below:
As at 31 March 2009

Council Tax
Business Rates
Total Provision

As at 31 March 2010

£’000

£’000

518

582

81

148

599

730
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1. Scope of responsibility
East Northamptonshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also
has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, including arrangements for the management of risk. As part of the ongoing
process of maintaining and improving those arrangements, the Council’s Monitoring Officer
has produced a local code of corporate governance and the corporate governance framework
devised in 2007/08 has been used to produce the Annual Governance Statement.
This Annual Governance Statement explains how the Council currently complies with the
good practice guidance provided by CIPFA/SOLACE and also how we meet the requirements
of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts
and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a
statement on internal control.
2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which
the Council is directed and controlled. It also comprises the activities through which the
Council accounts to, engages with and leads the community. The governance framework
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic outcomes and to consider
whether they have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and outcomes and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to: identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims
and outcomes; evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework described below has been in place at the Council for the year
ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.
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3. The Governance Framework
The CIPFA/SOLACE guidance makes it clear that the governance framework should include
six core principles identified in the 2004 publication “The Good Governance Standard for
Public Services” produced by the Independent Commission on Good Governance in Public
Services – a commission set up by the Chartered Institute Of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA), and the Office for Public Management. The Commission utilised work
done by, amongst others, Cadbury (1992), Nolan (1995) and CIPFA/SOLACE (2001). These
principles were adapted for application to local authorities and published by CIPFA in 2007.
The six core principles are:
1) Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and
creating and implementing a vision for the local area;
2) Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly
defined functions and roles;
3) Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour;
4) Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny
and managing risk;
5) Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective; and
6) Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public
accountability.
The documented governance framework and local code of governance was put in place
during 2008. In addition, there is sound evidence of activities to support the six core principles
identified in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework guidance. The evidence supporting each
principle is outlined in the table below.
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Ensure that partnerships are
underpinned by a common
vision of their work that is
understood and agreed by all
parties.

Publish an annual report on a
timely basis to communicate
the Council’s activities and
achievements, its financial
position and performance.

3

4

Council’s Corporate Plan was published covering 2008-11. As noted
above it is due for review during 2010/11. Extensive consultation took
place throughout 2008 on local priorities for the production of the
Sustainable Communities Strategy. A local Governance Code was
produced in March 2009 and approved by the Standards Board in April
2009.
The Council’s Partnership Protocol identifies the vision for each
partnership which are linked to the outcomes identified in the Corporate
Plan. This will be used by the Policy Officer to review the effectiveness
of the Council’s 8 key Partnerships.
There was some slippage with review of the Partnership Protocol in
2009/10, but this is a priority piece of work for the Policy Officer and
work was started in April 2010.
The Council produced its annual financial statements for 2008/09 on time
and with an unqualified opinion.
Recent activities and achievements of the Council are included in the
Nene Valley News fortnightly (NVN), and on the Council’s website.
Performance statistics for the National Indicators are published on the
website and are in the Council Tax information leaflet sent to all
households.

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2008-11 outlines the purpose and vision of
the Council and focuses on three outcome areas:
•
Improvements for the Community;
•
Improved Process; and
•
How we learn and grow
The following documents all focus on the outcomes laid out in the
Corporate Plan:
•
Service Plans
•
Sustainable Communities Strategy
•
Local Development Framework and Local Development
Schemes
•
Medium Term Financial Strategy

Evidence of Compliance
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Review on a regular basis the
Council’s vision for the local
area and its impact on the
Council’s
governance
arrangements.

2

56

Develop and promote the
Council’s purpose and vision.

1

In order to deliver
Principle 1 the Council
should:
and

Executive Director (CFO)

Policy Officer to review

Executive Director (CFO)

Standards Board

Full Council & Strategic
Management Team.
Executive Director (MO)

Full Council

Chief
Executive
Directors

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Accounts
completed
30 June.

by

Protocol
adopted
in
March 2008
Review taking
place
during
2010/11.

Code to be
reviewed
biannually; due
March 2011

Corporate
Plan due for
review
and
revision during
2010/11.

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 1:
Focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area

Put
in
place
effective
arrangements to identify and
deal with failure in service
delivery.

Decide how value for money is
to be measured and make sure
that the authority or partnership
has the information needed to
review value for money and
performance
effectively.
Measure the environmental
impact of policies, plans and
decisions.

6

7

57

The Corporate Plan and the Medium Term Financial Strategy include
information about how the Council measures performance.
The Performance Management Framework is represented in diagram in
Appendix 1. The Corporate Plan identifies high quality service delivery
as a key corporate outcome.
A number of projects have been undertaken, led by the Business Analyst
under the A4E banner:
•
‘avoidable contact’ project;
•
changes to standard letters (all Revs & Bens letters have been
reviewed and revised)
workflow of Planning processes (e.g the pre-application advice
process)
The Council has a policy on handling complaints, comments and
compliments, and devised a rigorous method during 2009/10 for
collecting data for NI 14 regarding ‘avoidable contact’. It will be using
data collected to inform better service delivery where the data identifies
problem areas.
The Customer Service Standards were updated and published in
December 2009.
The Council uses its CRM system to record complaints, comments and
compliments and makes use of GovMetrics data.
All Service Plans are linked to the priority outcomes identified in the
Corporate Plan. Value for money is identified as a specific outcome. The
Council continues to look for opportunities to reduce cost and improve
flexibility and resilience through exploring shared service delivery. The
Council has shared services for Internal Audit, Procurement, Licensing,
Financial Services and ICT Services. The Council continues to explore
other partnerships that offer value for money.
There are no specific environmental impact measures identified in the
Service Plans. However, in the Local Development Framework, extensive
sustainability appraisals, and environmental impact assessments have
been prepared for all the area plans.

Evidence of Compliance
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Decide how the quality of
service for users is to be
measured and make sure that
the information needed to
review
service
quality
effectively and regularly is
available.

5

In order to deliver
Principle 1 the Council
should:

Working

Strategic
Management
Team and Heads of
Service

Performance
Working
Party reviews performance
data quarterly

SMT; Head of Customer
Services

Performance
Party

A4E programme board

Head of Customer and
Community Services

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Annual review
of
service
plans.

In accordance
with
A4E
timetable

Bi-Annual
Review

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 1:
Focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area

2009/2010

The Chief Executive meets the Leader and Deputy
Leader of the Council weekly. This was agreed at the
outset of the relationship (May 2007) and has been

The Chief Executive is designated as the Head of Paid
Service. The Constitution clearly documents the role
and responsibilities of this post and is supplemented
by an up to date job description.

The
Constitution
identifies
the
roles
and
responsibilities of each committee and includes an
extensive scheme of delegated powers that is
reviewed regularly (part 3.2).
The Constitution clearly defines the roles and
responsibilities including relationships of the Strategic
Management Team, Members and Council Officers and
the codes and protocols under which they should
operate.
Records of decisions are available on the Council
website.
All officers of the Council have a comprehensive job
description.
The Constitution Review Group has been revising and
updating the Constitution during 2009/10. The Group
consists of five Members, supported by the Monitoring
Officer, the Solicitor to the Council and the Democratic
Services Manager.
The Committee structure is outlined at Appendix 2
The Council’s Scheme of Delegation identifies those
who have powers to make decision on behalf of the
Council.

Evidence of Compliance
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Develop protocols to ensure that the leader and
chief executive (or equivalent) negotiate their
respective roles early in the relationship and that a

4

58

Determine a scheme of delegation and reserve
powers within the constitution, including a formal
schedule of those matters specifically reserved for
collective decision of the Council, taking account
of relevant legislation, and ensure that it is
monitored and updated when required.
Make a chief executive or equivalent responsible
and accountable to the Council for all aspects of
operational management.

2

3

Set out a clear statement of the respective roles
and responsibilities of the executive and of the
executive’s members individually and the
Council’s approach towards putting this into
practice.
Set out a clear statement of the respective roles
and responsibilities of other Council members,
members generally and senior officers.

1

In order to deliver Principle 2 the
Council should:

Chief
Leader

Executive

and

necessary in
to legislative

See 1 above

And as
response
changes

Executive Director (MO);

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

At change of
Leader
or
Chief

See 1 above

The scheme of
delegation is
maintained
under review
by the
Executive
Director (MO)
and
Democratic
Services
Manager
Latest review
was March
2010.

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Principle 2:
Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles

Annual Governance Statement

Develop
protocols
to
ensure
effective
communication between Members and Officers in
their respective roles.

7

59

The Constitution defines the protocols that operate
between Members and Officers.
Officer / Member groups and working parties exist to
promote good communication on major projects such
as Rushden Regeneration and the A4E projects.
A lead Member has been assigned to each Head of
Service to develop closer relationships between
officers and Members.
There has been Member involvement in A4E projects
as well as in the development of the Knowledge, Skills
and Behaviours (KSB) framework for Members.
The KSB framework for staff adopted in 2008
recognises the significance of the relationship
between Members and staff.

Make a senior officer (usually the monitoring
officer) responsible to the Council for ensuring
that agreed procedures are followed and that all
applicable statutes and regulations are complied
with.

6
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One Executive Director is the Council’s Monitoring
Officer (MO). This officer has a statutory responsibility
to ensure the legality of transactions, activities and
arrangements the Council enters into. All reports to
committees are scrutinised and signed by the MO
before being presented.

Make a senior officer (the S151 officer)
responsible to the Council for ensuring that
appropriate advice is given on all financial
matters, for keeping proper financial records
and accounts, and for maintaining an effective
system of internal financial control.

continued since that date. A recent internal audit
review of leadership concluded that good levels of
communication between the Chief Executive and lead
Members existed.
One Executive Director acts as the Chief Finance
Officer (CFO) and is the Council’s Section 151 Officer.
This officer has a statutory responsibility to ensure the
Council’s financial affairs are properly undertaken and
suitably safeguarded from loss. All reports to
committees are scrutinised and signed by the CFO
before being presented to the appropriate committee.

Evidence of Compliance

5

shared understanding of roles and objectives is
maintained.

In order to deliver Principle 2 the
Council should:
(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing
Executive

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 2:
Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles

Ensure that the Council’s vision, strategic plans,
priorities and targets are developed through
robust mechanisms, and in consultation with the
local community and other key stakeholders, and
that they are clearly articulated and disseminated.

When working in partnership ensure that
members are clear about their roles and
responsibilities both individually and collectively in
relation to the partnership and to the Council.

9

10

60

The Council has a range of pay and conditions policies
and practices such as car allowance scheme,
maternity and paternity policies, flexible working,
equal pay, training and development.
Service delivery performance is monitored quarterly
by the Performance Working Party against national
and local indicators.
The Welland Independent Members’ Remuneration
Panel recommended a Members’ Allowance Scheme
st
which was approved by Council on the 21 April 2008
for the allowances for 2007/08. Council requested that
the Panel carry out a further review of Members’
allowances.
The Council's Corporate Plan links the corporate
outcomes and vision to Service Plans. All staff have
individual performance objectives which are linked to
those service plans, and their performance is
monitored through the appraisal process. See
Appendix 1.
The appraisal process (Performance & Development
Review) and the Learning Needs Analysis is used to
capture learning needs and disseminate information.
The Partnership Protocol includes a checklist to
ensure that any new partnership arrangements
include:
- a clear statement of the partnership principles and
objectives
- clarity of each partner’s role within the partnership
- definition of roles of partnership board members
- line management responsibilities for staff who
support the partnership
- a statement of funding sources for joint projects and

Evidence of Compliance
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When working in partnership:
- ensure that there is clarity about the legal status
of the partnership
- ensure that representatives or organisations
both understand and make clear to all other

Set out the terms and conditions for remuneration
of Members and officers and an effective structure
for managing the process, including an effective
remuneration panel (if applicable).
Ensure that effective mechanisms exist to monitor
service delivery.

8

In order to deliver Principle 2 the
Council should:

Executive Director (CFO)

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Partnership
Protocol

Members’
Allowances
are due for
review
in
2010/11

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 2:
Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles

61

clear accountability for proper financial administration
- a protocol for dispute resolution within the
partnership

Evidence of Compliance

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

partners the extent of their authority to bind their
organisation to partner decisions.

In order to deliver Principle 2 the
Council should:
(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 2:
Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles

2009/2010

5

Council’s Induction Programme and slides used for training of
both Members and Officers are evidence of compliance.
The Knowledge, Skills and Behaviours framework was
launched during 2008 and all staff attended facilitated training
workshops to ensure they understood how the Framework

The Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers are properly
communicated to all through awareness training on induction
and are available on the Council’s intranet.

The Internal Audit reviews in 2008 of arrangements for
Counter-fraud and Corporate Governance concluded that the
Council demonstrated a culture of high standards and conduct
of behaviour through its policies and procedures.
Creation of Standards Board and Audit & Risk Management
Committees demonstrate compliance and themselves monitor
the organisation’s arrangements on an on-going basis.
The Constitution is available to all staff through the intranet
and to the public through the Council's Internet site. The
Constitution contains clear Codes of Conduct for both
Members and Officers and a Protocol for Member/Officer
relations. These cover a whole range of responsibilities,
including those relating to conduct, standards, communication
and declarations of interest, and Staff and Members’ Registers
of Gifts and Hospitality. The KSB framework clearly covers
conduct and behaviour of officers.
The Council’s Constitution includes Codes of Conduct,
Financial Regulations and Standing Orders to ensure that
Officers and Members are aware of their responsibilities.
Internal audit reviews test the awareness of and compliance
with these processes and make recommendations for
improvement where required.

Evidence of Compliance
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Put in place arrangements to ensure that
members and employees of the Council
are not influenced by prejudice, bias or
conflicts or interest in dealing with
different stakeholder and put in place
appropriate processes to ensure that they
continue to operate in practice.
Develop and maintain shared values
including leadership values for both the
organisation and staff reflecting public
expectations and communicate these with
members, staff, the community and
partners
Put in place arrangements to ensure that
systems and processes are designed in
conformity with appropriate ethical

3

62

Ensure that standards of conduct and
personal behaviour expected of Members
and Officers, and of work between
Members and officers and the Council, its
partners and the community are defined
and communicated through codes of
conduct and protocols.

2

4

Ensure that the Council’s leadership sets
a tone for the organisation by creating a
climate of openness, support and respect.

1

In order to deliver Principle 3
the Council should:

Services

Head of Resources & O D

Democratic
Manager

Executive Director (MO)

Standards Board

Executive Director (MO)

Standards Board

Executive Director (MO)

Audit
&
Risk
Mgt
Committee;
Standards Board;
Internal Audit Manager

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

KSB
date
2010

Next
due
2011

review
June

review
March

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Principle 3:
Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of good governance through
upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour

Annual Governance Statement

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

63

Refer to section 10 under Principle 2, The Partnership Protocol
Checklist identifies the decision making process. The KSB
Framework includes reference to behaviour of staff in all
aspects of their jobs, including working with partners.

In pursuing the vision of a partnership,
agree a set of values against which
decision making and actions can be
judged.
Such
values
must
be
demonstrated by partners’ behaviour both
individually and collectively.

8

Services

Executive Director (MO)

The Council's Constitution sets out clearly how decisions have
to be made and approved by the Council. All Council
meetings are open to the public and all reports are available to
them, unless they are deemed to contain confidential
information that meets the exemption criteria set out in the
Local Government Act 1972.
The Council has developed and implemented the Knowledge,
Skills and Behaviours’ Frameworks for staff and Members.

Use the organisation’s shared values to
act as a guide for decision making and as
a basis for developing positive and
trusting relationships within the Council.

7

Democratic
Manager

Executive Director (MO)

The Council has a Standards Board made up of 4 independent
members 4 East Northamptonshire Councillors and 4 Town &
Parish Councillors. The Board reviews all issues regarding
standards and conduct and has operated best practice of
being chaired by an independent member since its inception,
before independent chairmanship was mandated in the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health (LGPIH) Act. The
Board publishes an Annual Report and its minutes and reports
are available on both the Council's intranet and Internet sites.

effective

an

Develop and maintain
Standards Committee.

6

(where applicable)

should be used. The Framework includes reference to
corporate governance matters. The KSB Framework for
Members was completed during 2009/10.

Evidence of Compliance

standards, and monitor their continuing
effectiveness in practice.

In order to deliver Principle 3
the Council should:

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 3:
Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of good governance through
upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour

2009/2010

The Council has adopted the ‘Fourth Option’ Committee structure
for decision making, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2000.
The Council's Constitution is available to all Members, officers
and the public and clearly shows how decisions at the Council
have to be made. The Constitution also clearly defines the roles
and responsibilities of the Scrutiny Committee and states that the
Audit and Risk Committee is set up to scrutinise the effectiveness
of risk management policies.
The Council has a number of committees that carry out regulatory
or scrutiny roles to ensure decisions are made in a transparent
way.
See Appendix 2 for Committee Structure.
The Council uses a standard committee report template that
contains a checklist to identify clearly to Members how the report
links to the Council’s corporate outcomes. It also provides for
reference to relevant risk management, financial, legal and other
matters. All agendas, reports and minutes are available on the
Council's intranet and Internet sites. Council meetings are open
to the public unless their content (or part thereof) meets the
criteria for exemption under Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972. Members of the public will then only be
excluded for the exempt items.
Standards Board reviewed a number of reports that had been
submitted as exemptions to ensure that the papers met the
criteria. Appropriate records are maintained by the Democratic
Services Manager of all exempt reports, the reasons for the
exemptions and any comments. During 2009/10, 495 items were
considered by the various panels and committees. Exclusions
were applied for 24 items.
There is ample evidence of the effective and accurate recording of
decisions e.g. Licensing and Taxi Panels and all minutes of
decisions are easy to find on the Council’s website.

Evidence of Compliance
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Develop and maintain open and
effective
mechanisms
for
documenting evidence for decisions
and recording the criteria, rationale
and
considerations
on
which
decisions are based.

2
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Develop and maintain an effective
scrutiny function which encourages
constructive challenge and enhances
the Council’s performance overall and
that of any organisation for which it is
responsible.

1

In order to deliver Principle
4 the Council should:

Democratic
Manager

Full Council

Services

Policy & Resources Cttee

Executive Director (MO)

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Principle 4:
Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing
risk

Annual Governance Statement

Develop and maintain an effective
audit committee (or equivalent) which
is independent of the executive and
scrutiny functions or make other
appropriate arrangements for the
discharge of the functions of such a
committee.

Ensure that effective, transparent and
accessible arrangements are in place
for dealing with complaints.

4

5
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As for Principle 1 – section 6, Customer Service Standards were
revised and published in December 2009.
The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) annual letter confirms
that there were no LGO complaints upheld against the Council or
findings of maladministration during the year. Seven complaints
were submitted and four were investigated by the Ombudsman.
The rulings on three cases were completed. One case was ruled
as ‘no or insufficient evidence of maladministration’; one case
was ruled as ‘outside jurisdiction’. One further case was settled
locally and related to a minor misunderstanding on the part of a
Duty Planning Officer.
As required by the LGIPH Act, the processes for handling
complaints against Members were reviewed. The Council has

All Members of the Council are required to sign a standard
declaration of interest at the start of their term of office and must
notify the Monitoring Officer of any material changes within 28
days of their occurrence. All Members received training on the
Code of Conduct, which clearly defines what a personal interest is
and how it must be declared.
The three members of SMT have completed standard declarations
of interest in accordance with the Constitution and the Employee
Code of Conduct. A number of other staff such as the Benefits
Team and the Internal Audit Team also completed standard
declaration of interest forms to demonstrate their objectivity and
independence.
The Audit & Risk Management Committee is independent of the
policy and scrutiny function. There are five Members, two of
whom received specialised training in January 2009 on how to
ensure the audit committee is effective in its role.

Evidence of Compliance

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

Put in place arrangements to
safeguard members and employees
against conflicts of interest and put in
place appropriate processes to
ensure that they continue to operate
in practice.

3

In order to deliver Principle
4 the Council should:

Executive Director (MO)
and Democratic Services
Manager for complaints
about Members.

Head of Customer and
Community Services for
complaints about services

Executive Director (MO)

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing
Ongoing
for
staff
and
Members, but
always
following
election of new
Members and
at induction of
new
employees.

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 4:
Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing
risk

66

Services
Executive

Executive Director (MO)

Head of Resources & OD

Executive Director (MO)
Executive Director (CFO)

Democratic
Manager and
Director (MO)

successfully introduced the new local filter arrangements for
handling such complaints.
A comprehensive Member Induction programme was undertaken
after the May 2007 election. Members received training in the law
and procedures relating to local government, the principles of
sound decision making, and on the different Committees of the
Council.

All committee reports use a standard template that identifies the
legal and financial implications of any decision. The Monitoring
Officer and Chief Finance Officer review and sign each report
(along with the Head of The Paid Service) before it is presented to
the relevant committee.
The Council has an established risk management framework,
including a system to record risks, controls and assurance
(4Risk), which forms a comprehensive Risk Register. Risks are
reviewed on a regular basis by the Audit & Risk Committee. The
Head of Resources leads the risk management process and has
reviewed the content and categorisation of risks during with the
assistance of Risk Management expertise through partnership
working with Northamptonshire County Council. Risk owners
have received training on how to add assurance records to the
system. The Enterprise Risk Management audit for 2009/10
concluded that the Council was “Risk Managed” (fourth highest
level on a scale of 5) which means that consistent and effective
application of appropriate Risk Management techniques across
the entire organisation are in place. The conclusion indicates that
there has been no marked changed in how well Risk Management
is embedded.
The Council reviewed its Whistle-blowing Policy in December 2008
and conducted a publicity exercise on its re-launch that included
the Monitoring Officer attending team meetings to explain the
Policy and encourage questions. A staff questionnaire was also

(where applicable)

Evidence of Compliance
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Ensure that arrangements are in
place for whistle-blowing to which
staff and all those contracting with the
authority have access.

9

8

7

Ensure that those making decisions
whether for the authority or the
partnership
are
provided
with
information that is fit for the purpose –
relevant, timely and gives clear
explanations of technical issues and
their implications.
Ensure that professional advice on
matters that have legal or financial
implications is available and recorded
well in advance of decision making
and used appropriately.
Ensure that risk management is
embedded to the culture of the
Council, with Members and managers
at all levels recognising that risk
management is part of their jobs.

6

In order to deliver Principle
4 the Council should:

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Following
election
2011

in

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 4:
Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing
risk

Recognise the limits of lawful action
and observe both the specific
requirements of legislation and the
general responsibilities placed on
local authorities by public law.

Observe all specific legislative
requirements placed upon them, as
well as the requirements of general
law, and in particular to integrate the
key principles of good administrative
law – rationality, legality and natural
justice – into their procedures and
decision-making processes.

11

12

67

Additional legal advice is obtained where needed, and a budget
exists for this. Examples exist of Counsel advice sought during
the year.
Protocols exist for licensing panels to ensure actions are legal.

used to assess the level of understanding after the training had
taken place, over 100 staff completed (passed) the online test to
demonstrate their understanding of the Policy.
The Constitution provides for joint arrangements for obtaining
efficient, effective and economic service delivery. Clear examples
exist such as Finance (EnCor), Internal Audit (Welland), the
Licensing Unit, and IT (joint arrangement with Wellingborough).
All Councillors have training as part of Member induction about
the law relating to Councils and covers the ultra vires issue.
The committee report template requires the Executive Directors to
sign off to cover Financial Regulations and legal issues.
As above

Evidence of Compliance
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Actively recognise the limits of lawful
activity placed on them by, for
example, the ultra vires doctrine but
also strive to utilise powers to the full
benefit of their communities.

10

In order to deliver Principle
4 the Council should:

Services

Executive Director (MO)

Democratic
Manager

Executive Director (MO)

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 4:
Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing
risk

2009/2010

Assess the skills required by officers and
make a commitment to develop those skills
to enable roles to be carried out effectively.

Develop members’ skills on a continuing
basis to improve performance, including the
ability to scrutinise and challenge and to
recognise when outside expert advice is
needed.

3

4
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The job descriptions for the Strategic Management Team
identify their role and responsibilities.
The Constitution identifies their specific roles and
responsibilities.
The CFO is CIPFA qualified and maintains CPD; both
Executive Directors attend necessary CPD events annually.
The Council’s Knowledge, Skills & Behaviours Framework
was introduced in 2008 and helps the Council to identify
skills gaps. The appraisal process is used alongside the
Learning Management System to deliver appropriate training.
The Council’s Development and Training Policy for staff
supports a wide range of different types of training and
continuing professional development to provide better
services.
The appraisal process (Performance & Development Review)
and a Council wide Learning Needs Assessment has been
used to identify the learning needs across the organisation
and feed into staff training programmes.
Refer to Section 1 of this Principle

Ensure that the statutory officers have the
skills, resources and support necessary to
perform effectively in their roles and that
these roles are properly understood
throughout the authority.

2

68

The Members’ Induction Programme offers a wide range of
training sessions varying from how the Council and its
Committees work, through to IT, the internet and general
skills such as speed reading and effective chairmanship of
meetings.
The induction programme for staff was reviewed and updated
with input from staff during 2008/09.

Provide induction programmes tailored to
individual needs and opportunities for
members and officers to update their
knowledge on a regular basis.

Evidence of Compliance

1

In order to deliver Principle 5 the
Council should:
Executive Director (MO)
and Democratic Services
Manager;
Head of Resources & OD

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Principle 5: Developing the capacity and capability of Members and Officers to be effective

Annual Governance Statement

69

Succession planning is not considered relevant for Members.
The Leader of the Council has however, recognised that he
has a responsibility and this is reflected in the Leader’s
KSBs.
The Council is using the KSB Framework to help identify
services where succession planning could be better utilised
to provide more resilience and reduce staff turnover.
Although it is recognised that in a small council there may be
limited opportunities for measurable success.
There is evidence that employees consider the Council a
th
good place to work as it achieved 18 place in the Sunday
Times best Council to work for staff survey during 2008. In
th
2009 the Council achieved 60 place in the Best Public
Sector Employer staff survey with the highest scoring
category being ‘well-being’ with the employees showing a
“sense of camaraderie which has helped create a committed
and contented workforce”.

The Communications Strategy and the Sustainable
Communities Strategy identify how the Council engages with
sections of the community. Members are involved in various
joint working groups across the District. A Residents’ Panel
made up of 900 volunteers across the District, takes part in
the consultation process to give feedback on Council
services. In 2009/10, the Residents’ Panel were consulted on
the satisfaction with council/council services, information on
services, influencing decisions and feeling safe in the
district.

Members are actively involved in developing their own KSB
framework which will include a self appraisal element.

Evidence of Compliance
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Ensure that career structures are in place
for members and officers to encourage
participation and development.

7

6

Ensure that effective arrangements are in
place for reviewing the performance of the
executive as a whole and of individual
members and agreeing an action plan
which might, for example, aim to address
any training or development needs.
Ensure
that
effective
arrangements
designed encourage individuals from all
sections of the community to engage with,
contribute to and participate in the work of
the Council.

5

In order to deliver Principle 5 the
Council should:

Head of Customer and
Community Services

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

SCS published
for 2008-2015
in
January
2009. Action
Plan refreshed
annually

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 5: Developing the capacity and capability of Members and Officers to be effective

2009/2010

70
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The Council also operates a Youth Council, where young

Communications Manager

The Council uses various media to communicate with its
stakeholders, such as:
Nene Valley News; local media; revised Council Tax leaflet;
corporate leaflets; Council website; community portals;
consultation; reports and other public documents; displays,
exhibitions and roadshows; and the ‘In House’ newsletter.

Ensure
that
clear
channels
of
communication are in place with all sections
of the community and other stakeholders,
and put in place monitoring arrangements
to ensure that they operate effectively.
Hold meetings in public unless there are
good reasons for confidentiality.
Ensure that arrangements are in place to

3

Scrutiny

Chair
of
Committee

The Scrutiny Committee produces an annual report, which is
available, as with all other reports, on the Council's intranet
and Internet site.
The work of the Scrutiny Committee in 2009 included:
•
Review of Service Plans
•
Development Control Service Improvement Plan plus
review of new documents and policies relating to
Development Control
•
Members’ use of IT
•
Monitoring of Section 106 agreements
•
Care and Repair
•
Constitutional changes

Produce an annual report on the activity of
the scrutiny function.

2

(where applicable)

ENable Partnership Board

The Sustainable Communities Strategy sets out the
following:
Where do we want to be? - our long-term vision and the
outcomes we want to achieve
Where are we now? - a profile of our local communities, our
strengths and the challenges we face and where there are
links with other important plans and strategies
How will we get there? - strategic priorities, key interventions
and enabling activities
The Strategy has been publicised through Nene valley News
and is available on the website.

Make clear to themselves, all staff and the
community to whom they are accountable
and for what.
Consider those institutional stakeholders to
whom the Council is accountable and
assess
the
effectiveness
of
the
relationships and any changes required.

Evidence of Compliance

1

In order to deliver Principle 6 the
Council should:

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Annual Report
produced
covering
calendar year

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Principle 6:
Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability

Annual Governance Statement

The Council's Constitution includes details of citizens’ rights,

On an annual basis, publish a performance
plan giving information on the Council’s
vision, strategy, plans and financial
statements as well as information about its
outcomes,
achievements
and
the
satisfaction of service users in the previous
period.

Ensure that the Council as a whole is open

5

6
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The Communications Strategy and Public consultation
Strategy identify how the Council can engage with its
stakeholders. The Residents Panel consultation reports give
useful information on how their views are translated into
Council Policy. In 2009/10 the Residents’ Panel was surveyed
on the following topics:
•
Satisfaction with the council and the services
provided
•
Information on council services
•
Influencing council decisions
•
Feeling safe in East Northamptonshire
The feedback was mainly positive and is used to inform the
focus for service improvements.
Mosaic data continues to be used to help the Council better
understand its customers’ needs.
Surveys have been held during the year relating to the
significant development plan for new leisure facilities at
Manor Park.
The Council publishes its annual report and annual financial
statements within the statutory requirements. Outcomes and
achievements are publicised in Nene Valley News. The
Residents’ Panel survey results are also publicised which
clearly show the level of customer satisfaction in the chosen
areas. The Council publishes a calendar of its annual
programme of meetings with the Parish and Town Councils
and minutes of those meetings are produced.

Establish a clear policy on the types of
issues they will meaningfully consult on or
engage with the public and service users
about including a feedback mechanism for
those consultees to demonstrate what has
changed as a result.

4

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

people from local communities are elected to represent the
views of their peers. This relates mostly to the issuing of
grant money to youth organisations. They are also consulted
on wider issues that affect young people in the area and are
introduced to the workings of Local Government to help
them better understand the various tiers of responsibility.

Evidence of Compliance

enable the Council to engage with all
sections of the community effectively.
These arrangements should recognise that
different sections of the community have
different priorities and establish explicit
processes for dealing with these competing
demands.

In order to deliver Principle 6 the
Council should:

Executive Director (MO)

Head of Customer and
Community Services

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 6:
Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability
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the ways citizens can get involved in the Council's work and
ways to contact the Council. The Constitution also states that
Council meetings, agendas, reports and minutes are all open
to and available to the public except if there are areas
deemed to be exempt. Refer to Principle 3 section 7 and
Principle 4 section 2 for the occurrence of exemptions.
Details of Council meetings and Councillors’ surgeries are
published in Nene Valley News.
The Council has a published petitions scheme to reflect
statute.
th
Achieving 18 position in ‘The Best Council to Work For in
th
2008, and 60 position in ‘The Best Public Sector Employer’
staff survey in 2009 indicates that staff are satisfied with their
engagement in decision making.
Xchange is the Council’s new employee communication and
consultation group. It replaces the Joint Consultative Forum
(JCF) and Staff Forum.
The group keeps staff informed and gives them the
opportunity to exchange views and ideas to influence
decisions on issues such as:
•
the development and revision of policies and
procedures affecting employees;
•
changes to terms and conditions of employment;
•
issues that will have an impact on Council
employees e.g. significant change to the Council’s
organisational structure.
Evidence of the results of consultation is available to staff on
EUNICE.
The Council encourages staff to bring for ideas through its
Bright Ideas scheme.

Evidence of Compliance
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Develop and maintain a clear policy on how
staff and their representatives are consulted
and involved in decision making.

and accessible to the community, service
users and its staff and ensure that it has
made a commitment to openness and
transparency in all its dealings, including
partnerships, subject only to the need to
preserve confidentiality in those specific
circumstances where it is proper and
appropriate to do so.

In order to deliver Principle 6 the
Council should:
Services

Head of Resources & O D

Democratic
Manager

(where applicable)

Responsibility for
monitoring and
reviewing

Timescales

Areas for
Improvement

Annual Governance Statement
2009/2010
Principle 6:
Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability
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4. Review of Effectiveness
The Council is responsible for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is
informed by the work of the managers within the Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment by the Head of Internal Audit’s
annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and
inspectorates.
The main processes that have been relied upon by the Council in reviewing and maintaining the
effectiveness of the system of internal control are identified in this section of the Annual
Governance Statement.
The Council’s Strategic Management Team (SMT) and Heads of Service
SMT consists of the Chief Executive and the two Executive Directors. They meet weekly and
provide a forum for overall planning, performance monitoring and decision making in connection
with Council services. SMT is therefore providing a management core to enable direction and
control. All significant business proposals are brought to SMT for consideration and approval, and
service plans are scrutinised individually to ensure they contribute to the delivery of the corporate
outcomes. A formal project approval process has been introduced this year.
The Annual Governance Statement and, in particular, the recommendations arising through its
preparation and review, are considered and endorsed by SMT therefore assisting with the
continued improvement in the Council’s internal control, risk management and governance
arrangements.
SMT, in conjunction with Heads of Service, is assigned responsibility for the planning and delivery
of specific services in accordance with the Council’s business priorities. In doing so they have a
responsibility to ensure that services provide good value for money and Council resources are
safeguarded from loss and damage.
The Council’s constitution places much of the responsibility for internal control on its Directors,
though in practice this is largely delegated to the Heads of Service. Therefore, annually the Heads
of Service are required to certify a ‘Statement of Corporate Responsibilities’. This statement
requires explicit confirmation that, as the senior managers within the Council responsible for the
delivery of services, they have done so in accordance with the Council’s policies, procedures and
practices that underpin the internal control framework. Where exceptions exist there is a
requirement to disclose these so that consideration can be given to the overall effect these may
have on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment and the preparation of the
Annual Governance Statement. Heads of Service are also required to review and identify any
emerging risks that may threaten service delivery.
All Heads of Service completed a signed declaration to demonstrate their understanding of their
responsibilities in relation to the internal control framework, risk management and overall good
governance of the Council.
The Audit & Risk Management Committee
The Audit & Risk Management Committee was established in June 2006 to strengthen the
governance arrangements of the Council and ensure the effective implementation of the Council’s
risk management strategy. The Committee has four main areas of responsibility. It considers
reports from Internal and External Audit that provide assurance over the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements and can commission value for money and efficiency reviews. It also
maintains an overview of the Regulatory Framework, including liaising with the Standards Board,
and receiving referrals relating to fraud and corruption and whistle-blowing. The Committee has
responsibility for reviewing the annual statement of accounts and advising the Policy & Resources
Committee of any items of interest, and monitors the progress of the Council against the Data
Quality Strategy.
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During 2009/10, the Committee received quarterly reports from the Head of Revenues & Benefits
in relation to countering Benefit fraud, including the collection rates of overpayments. Reports from
the risk management software 4Risk, were presented quarterly to facilitate monitoring of the risks
categorised on the risk register as ‘Primary’ risks.
The Committee also received quarterly progress reports from the Internal Audit Manager, giving
details of the work completed in accordance with the Annual Internal Audit Plan, an overview of
findings and recommendations made, and performance statistics and other emerging issues
relating to Internal Audit. The new format risk based Annual Audit Plan for 2010/11 was scrutinised
and approved in March 2010.
The Committee received and approved the reports from External Audit, including the annual
statement of accounts and the annual report on the Use of Resources.
The Scrutiny Committee
The role of the Scrutiny Committee is to review and scrutinise decisions taken in the discharge of
any of the Council’s functions and to make reports and recommendations to the full Council and to
the Policy & Resources Committee.. The Scrutiny Committee helps to develop Council policy
through in-depth investigations of local issues and may:
• consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants; and
• exercise the right to ‘call in’ decisions made but not yet implemented.
The Council’s Scrutiny Committee met four times in 2009/10 (June, September, and December
2009 and February 2010). An annual report was produced summarising the activities of the
Scrutiny Committee for the year to December 2009 and setting out the Committee’s programme of
work for the forthcoming year. The issues considered during 2009 are noted under Principle 6
section 2.
The Scrutiny Committee’s work plan for 2010 will focus around areas such as: crime and antisocial behaviour; the customer experience; strong communities and reduced deprivation; and
market towns. The work programme will be structured in a way that ensures priority is given to
reviewing progress made towards achieving the Council’s Priority Outcomes as set out in the
Corporate Plan.

The Standards Committee (East Northamptonshire Standards Board)
The Council has established the East Northamptonshire Standards Board to discharge the
functions conferred by Part III of the Local Government Act 2000.
The key role and function of the Board is to promote and maintain high standards of conduct of
Members, ensuring they observe the Member Code of Conduct, to provide training on the
application of the code and to deal with any reports from the Monitoring Officer. The Board has
responsibilities for the corporate governance of the 51 Town and Parish Councils in the District and
for providing advice and training to their Councillors. The Board can also grant dispensation to
Members to take part in Council business in certain circumstances where the Code of Conduct
would otherwise prevent this.
The Board is also responsible for:
• Reviewing the arrangements for handling complaints against the Council;
• Reviewing the outcome of Ombudsman investigations;
• Promoting and maintaining the Member / Officer Protocol;
• Overseeing the operation of the whistle-blowing policy; and
• The maintenance of professional standards
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The Board’s remit also includes updating codes and protocols in line with guidance from the
Standards Board for England.
During 2009, the Board established three sub-committees: Assessment, Review, and Hearing.
This reflected the new complaints handling procedure adopted in the previous year.
One complaint in relation to a decision made by a Town Council was assessed under the new
arrangements and has been concluded. No findings of fact were made but other action resulting
included training for Town Councillors on the Code of Conduct. There were no cases of
maladministration reported. A work plan for 2010 was approved by the Board at its meeting on 3rd
February 2010 and an Annual Report published.
Internal Audit
Internal Audit is responsible for objectively reviewing the Council’s internal systems of control with
a view to reporting on and making recommendations to Council management with regard to their
effectiveness for managing business risk. Internal Audit reviews are completed in accordance with
the approved annual internal audit plan. This is a programme of reviews designed to assess the
effectiveness of the internal controls on which the Council relies for managing risk.
In 2009/10, the Welland Internal Audit Consortium delivered 185 days of planned audit work and
provided 30 days of advice and assistance to SMT and Heads of Service as requested. Based on
the work carried out by the Consortium in line with the approved audit plan, and additional
information provided by relevant managers on their responses to audit recommendations, the audit
opinion was that the Council’s overall internal control arrangements provide a Good Level of
Assurance. This represents the highest of the five levels of assurance within the model adopted
by Consortium. A “Good” assurance rating indicates that the control environment can be relied
upon. This level of assurance is the same as the opinion for 2008/9.
The Consortium has supported the Head of Resources with updating the risk register with
assurance statements resulting from audit reviews and the identification of new risks.
During the third year of service delivery, the Consortium has continued to make a positive
contribution to the Council’s control framework and has provided a robust challenge to the internal
control framework and corporate governance arrangements of the Council. The Consortium has
operated in compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice and has delivered a high level of
customer satisfaction. On that basis the Consortium was judged to be operating effectively.
External Audit
External Audit is responsible for providing an opinion in connection with the Council’s financial
statements. For the year ended 31 March 2009 an unqualified (or satisfactory) opinion was issued
in September 2009 and presented to the Audit & Risk Committee for approval.
The Council’s External Auditors are the Audit Commission. The Annual Audit Letter was presented
to the March 2010 Audit & Risk Committee. This document included reference to all the work
carried out by the Audit Commission, including the scoring for the Use of Resources (level 2), the
Comprehensive Area Assessment results for managing performance, managing finances,
governing the business and managing resources. The Annual Audit Letter also confirmed that the
Audit Commission did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s internal control
arrangements.
Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer
One Executive Director (the Chief Finance Officer) is the Council’s Section 151 Officer. The other
Executive Director is the Council’s Monitoring Officer (MO). Each officer also provides on-going
advice in connection with both the financial and legal standing of Council business, and advice to
Councillors on their responsibilities. Refer to sections 5 and 6 under Principle 2 of the tabulated
framework where their roles and responsibilities have been identified.
Both Executive Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the governance arrangements.
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Other Mechanisms or Sources of Assurance
A number of other external sources of assurance exist that demonstrate good management and
support the overall good governance of the Council.
• The Revenues & Benefits Service maintained its accreditation to the Quality Standard ISO
9000
• The Council’s IT systems are subject to external interrogation by an accredited organisation at
least quarterly to confirm their resilience and security
• The Council has received quarterly reports in connection with its abilities to meet health and
safety at work requirements and where necessary acted on these
5

Declaration

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework and a plan is in place to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system.
Significant Governance Issues
The Council has considered the outcomes of the risk management and assurance processes
referred to in this Governance Statement. Where considered appropriate, action plans have been
developed to address weaknesses. No new significant issues were identified in 2009/10 following
the annual assessment of the review of effectiveness and therefore no new action plan has been
developed.
Table 2 indicates the progress against recommendations included in the previous two Annual
Governance Statements.

Previous Recommendations - Table 2
Previous Recommendation Responsible
Officer
1 Complete a review of the Executive
Audit & Risk Committee to Director
measure its effectiveness (Chief
and how this can be further Finance
improved
Officer)
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Implementation Status and Progress of
due date
action in 2009/10
30 July 2009
Revised target
The
Audit
&
Risk
Revised to 31st Committee's chairmanship
October 2010
changed at the Council's
Annual Meeting in May
2009. In addition the
Council carried out a full
review of its Constitution
and Committee Structure
during 2009/10 which lead
to a change in the Terms
of Reference for the
Committee. It is proposed
to
review
the
new
arrangements after the

East Northamptonshire Council Statement of Accounts 2009/10

Annual Governance Statement

2009/2010

Previous Recommendation Responsible
Officer

Implementation Status and Progress of
due date
action in 2009/10
approval of the 2009/10
accounts.
2 Although evidence exists to Executive
December 2008 Partly Implemented
support the conclusion that Directors
The Framework has been
the Council is well managed into
the
Chief Revised to 31st incorporated
with an effective internal Finance
December 2010 format of the AGS to
control framework and good Officer and
include the roles and
governance arrangements, Executive
responsibilities
for
the Council does not have a Director (MO)
producing the AGS.
fully developed and formally
An officer group or
documented framework in
arrangements
to
cokeeping
with
the
ordinate the gathering of
CIPFA/SOLACE guidance.
evidence has not been
The Council should develop
formalised.
Once
the
and
document
the
restructure is complete
Governance framework to
this will be examined
reflect
the
guidance,
again
and
will
be
including
roles,
designated
to
an
responsibilities, sources of
appropriate officer.
evidence and a timetable for
collecting and documenting
the evidence to support the
production of the AGS.
3 The Council should develop Executive
December 2008 Implemented.
and adopt a local code of Directors
A local Code was agreed
governance, and publish it to by SMT on 24 March 2009
Chief
Members,
staff
and Finance
and by the Standards
appropriate stakeholders.
Board on 8 April 2009
Officer and
See Appendix 3.
Executive
Director (MO)
4 The Confidential Reporting Executive
December 2008 Implemented.
Code was last reviewed in Directors
The
Whistle-Blowing
2004. This should be Policy was updated and
Chief
reviewed and updated if Finance
re-launched in December
required to reflect any Officer and
2008. Staff awareness
changes in the structure or Executive
sessions were delivered.
reporting
lines,
and Director (MO)
effectively communicated to
all staff
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance
our corporate governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need
for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.
Signed:

Signed:

Date:

Date:

David Oliver
Chief Executive

Cllr. Andrew Mercer
Leader of the Council
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APPENDIX 1 - The Performance Management Framework

East Northamptonshire
Sustainable Communities
Strategy

Statutory Plans
Annual Performance
Plan
Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Council’s
Corporate
Outcomes

Corporate Plan

Service Plans (8)

Organisational
Development
Strategy
Asset Management
Plan

Individual staff performance
Appraisals
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APPENDIX 2 - Committee Structure
Policy &
Resources
Committee
15 Members
Operating within Policy
Framework and
budgets delegated by
Full Council

Personnel SubCommittee
5 Members
Determines matters
relating to personnel
and H & S of
employees

Finance SubCommittee
5 Members
Manages revenue and
capital expenditure and
the progress of the capital
programme

East Northamptonshire
Standards Board
12 Members

Scrutiny
Committee
15 Members

4 x Independent, 4 x ENC, 4 x
Parish & Town Councillors

Overview & scrutiny of
policy decisions and
issues of local concern
(with time limited
review groups for
specific issues)

Full Council
40 Members
Approves Policy
Framework, Strategic
Objectives, Annual
Budget, Plans and
Strategies

Planning Policy
Committee
15 Members
Forming and developing the
Local Development
Framework, spatial planning
policy, strategic planning
objectives and area plans

Development
Control Committee
18 Members
Planning applications
Appeals
Enforcement
Listed buildings
Tree preservation

Audit & Risk
Management Committee
5 Members
Considers and commissions
audit activities
Oversees risk management

Licensing Committee
12 Members
Liquor, Public
Entertainment, Taxi and
Gambling Licensing
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APPENDIX 3 - LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE

1

East Northamptonshire Council recognises that: 1. Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good
stewardship of public funds, good public engagement and ultimately, good
outcomes for citizens and service users.
2. Good governance supports the Council to achieve corporate outcomes in an
effective way; it underpins our ambitions with appropriate mechanisms for control
and management of risk.
3. We should aim to meet the standards of the best, so our governance arrangements
should not only be sound, but also be seen to be sound;
4. Governance is about ensuring we’re doing the right things, in the right way, for the
right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.
5. Good governance comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which we manage, direct and control the Council’s business and through which
we account to, engage with and, where appropriate, provide leadership to, the
communities of East Northamptonshire.

2

3

East Northamptonshire Council is committed to having sound corporate
governance arrangements and believes that the development and maintenance of a
local Code of Governance helps to demonstrate this. A local code can provide
reassurance, and promote credibility and confidence in the public services we provide.
To assess our governance arrangements we will apply the six core principles of good
governance set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE Good Governance Framework 2007* (*add
source in footer), which are:Focusing on the purpose of the Authority and on outcomes for the community
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.

2.

Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with
clearly defined functions and roles

3.

Promoting values for the Authority and demonstrating the values of good
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.

4.

Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective
scrutiny and managing risk

5.

Developing the capacity and capability of Members and Officers to be effective.

6.

Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public
accountability.

East Northamptonshire Council is satisfied that it already has a well established
and robust Constitution and other good governance documents and systems in place
within the Council. The purpose of this local Code of Governance therefore is to
provide a single document that:
•

80

1.

provides a simple quick reference point for customers and regulators interested in
our governance arrangements;
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•

serves as a management tool for reviewing and monitoring existing corporate
governance arrangements;

•

provides evidence of our governance arrangements for our “Use of Resources”
assessment, and Annual Governance Statement, and.

•

helps develop plans for improving arrangements for corporate governance.

4

An assessment against the CIPFA checklist is carried out annually by our Internal
Auditors, who review the documents, processes and other means used to measure
compliance with the CIPFA Framework and supporting principles. Any comments and
plans for improvement are noted for subsequent review. The results of this self
assessment are reported to the Audit & Risk Management Committee and the East
Northamptonshire Standards Board, and then published on the Council’s website, so
that it is widely available. The self assessment documentation is reviewed on an
annual cycle, whereby documents/evidence, and actions to implement identified
improvements are reviewed by the Council’s Strategic Management Team. This helps
assess whether appropriate governance arrangements are in place or further
improvements are needed.

5

The three members of East Northamptonshire Council’s Strategic Management
Team (in their statutory roles of Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer and Head of
the Paid Service) meet the Audit Manager formally on a six monthly cycle to monitor
the Council’s governance arrangements. The Annual Governance Statement
documents the yearly review of our governance arrangements, is reported to the
Council’s Audit & Risk Management Committee and is itself reviewed by the Council’s
external auditors.

6

Hyperlinks to relevant documents relating to governance which are already
available free of charge on the Council’s website are included below. For any further
information on the Council’s governance arrangements please contact the Monitoring
Officer who is responsible for overseeing, monitoring and reviewing the operation of
this code and for reporting on compliance with it in the Annual Governance Statement.
The Monitoring Officer can be contacted by telephoning 01832 742108 or by e mail to
MO@east-northamptonshire.gov.uk .

Hyperlinks to key documents:The Constitution links
contains the Articles of the Constitution, Responsibility for Functions – including the
Scheme of Delegation, the Standards Board and Audit & Risk Committees’
responsibilities, and the responsibilities of the Head of the Paid Service, the Monitoring
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer); the Standing Orders of the
Council (Procedure Rules), the Finance Procedure Rules, Access to information Rules,
Employee Procedure Rules, Code of Conduct for Members, Members, Allowances
Scheme, the Member/Officer Relations Protocol, Code of Conduct for Officers,
Whistleblowing Policy, Planning Code of Practice for Councillors and Officers.
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Key Policy links:
•

Council’s Corporate Plan

•

The Sustainable Communities Strategy

•

The Local Development Framework

•

The Council’s Communication Strategy

Key Finance & Risk Management links:
•

Council’s Annual Budget

•

Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts

•

External Auditor’s Annual Statement on the Accounts

•

Council’s Risk Management Policy

•

Council’s Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy

•

Fraud Awareness Strategy

•

Performance Management Framework (documents internal process)

•

Project Management Framework (documents internal process)

Key Member, Officer and decision making links:
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•

Annual Report of Standards Board

•

Annual Report of Scrutiny Committee

•

Officers’ and Members’ Knowledge Skills and Behaviours Frameworks

•

Officers’ Gift and Hospitality Guidance
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Accounting Period
This is the length of time covered by the accounts. It is normally a period of twelve months
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date.
Accrual
Income or expenditure relating to goods or services received / provided during the accounting
period where payment has not been made or received at the end of the accounting period.
Actuarial Assumptions
Assumptions made by the Pension Fund Actuary in valuing the funds assets and liabilities
Actuarial Gains and Losses
For a defined pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses arise because:
•

events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made at the last valuation or:

•

the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Actuarial Valuation
An actuary undertakes a valuation by comparing the value of the pension schemes assets with its
liabilities. The actuary then calculates how much needs to be paid into the scheme by the employer
and members to ensure there will be adequate funds to pay the pensions when they become due.
Asset
An asset is something the Council owns. Assets can be either current or fixed.
•

A current asset is one that will be used or cease to have a material value by the end of the
next financial year.

•

A fixed asset provides a benefit to the Council for a period greater than one year.

Balance Sheet
A statement summarising the Council’s financial position at the end of the accounting period. The
statement shows the Council’s assets and liabilities.
Billing Council
East Northamptonshire Council is classed as a billing Council as it has the responsibility of
collecting the council tax and non-domestic rates. It collects the council tax on behalf of the County
Council and Police Authority and the non domestic rates on behalf of central government.
Capital Adjustment Account
This account contains the amount that was required to be set aside from the capital receipts and the
amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts. It also contains the
difference between amounts provided for depreciation and the statutory minimum amount that must
be set aside from revenue for the repayment of external debt, if applicable.
Capital Charges
Capital charges are charged to General Fund service revenue accounts for the use of fixed assets.
Charges for the use of fixed assets consist of an annual provision for depreciation, where
appropriate. The calculation of these charges is based on the opening Net Book Value (NBV) of
each of the assets.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of a fixed asset, which adds to and not merely
maintains the value of existing assets.
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Capital Financing
Sources of money that have been used to finance the capital programme. The Council uses
various methods to finance its capital expenditure, including direct revenue financing, usable
capital receipts, capital grants, revenue reserves and earmarked reserves.
Capital Financing Requirement
The capital financing requirement indicator is to measure an authority’s underlying need to borrow to
fund capital expenditure.
Capital Grants Unapplied
These are capital grants that the Council has received, that have not yet been used to finance
capital expenditure.
Capital Programme
The planned capital schemes the Council intends to carry out over a specified period of time.
Capital Receipt
The Council can use the proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets to finance new capital
investments, the proceeds cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure.
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
Professional accountancy body specialising in the public sector.
Collection Fund
A separate fund recording the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax, Business Rates and
the residual Community Charge.
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is either:
•

a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Council’s control: or

•

a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will be required or the amount cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Corporate / Democratic Core
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in
specifically because they are elected, multi purpose authorities. The cost of these activities are
thus over and above those which would be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose,
nominated bodies managing the same services. There is therefore no logical basis for apportioning
these costs to services.
Creditor
Amounts owed by the Council for goods or services they have received for which payment has not
been made.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit schemes liabilities.
DCLG – LSVT Levy
This relates to amounts due to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) as a result of the
Right to Buy agreement negotiated at the time of the transfer of the housing stock between East
Northamptonshire Council and East Northamptonshire Housing.
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Debtor
Amounts owed to the Council for goods or services the Council has provided for which payment
has not been received.
Depreciation
This is a charge made to the service revenue accounts each year to reflect the reduction in the
value of the asset used in the delivery of services.
Finance Lease
A lease which transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to
the lessee.
Government Grants
Grants made by the government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to support the cost
of the provision of services. These grants may be specifically towards the cost of particular
schemes or to support the revenue spend of the Council.
Government Grants Deferred Account
Where a fixed asset has been financed by a grant, the grant itself is written off to the relevant
service over the expected useful life of the asset, the balance on the Government Grants Deferred
Account, which contributes to the overall Government Grants/Contributions sum within the Balance
Sheet, represents the amount to be written off to the relevant service.
Gross Book Value
The historical cost or the revalued amount of the asset before depreciation.
Impairment
Where the value of the fixed asset reduces below its carrying amount on the balance sheet.
Liability
A liability is where the Council owes payment to an individual or an organisation.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
The minimum amount which must be charged to a council’s revenue account each year.
Net Book Value
This is the value of an asset that is counted in the balance sheet. It represents its historical or
revalued cost less the accumulated depreciation of the asset.
Net Worth
The total value of an organisation expressed as total assets less total liabilities.
National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR)
A levy on businesses, based on a national rate in the pound set by the government multiplied by
the rateable value of the premises they occupy. NNDR is collected by billing authorities on behalf
of central government and then redistributed among all local authorities and police authorities on
the basis of population.
Non Operational Asset
Fixed assets held by the Council but are not directly occupied used or consumed in the delivery of
services.
Operating Lease
A lease where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor.
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Operational Asset
Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Council in the direct delivery of
services.
Precept
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the later to collect income
from taxpayers on their behalf.
Provision
Provisions are for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred, but the amounts or
the dates on which they will arise are uncertain.
Prudential Code
The Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA, as a professional code of practice to support local
authorities in making capital decisions. The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure the
capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable. A further key
objective is to ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice and in a manner that supports prudence, affordability and sustainability.
Rateable Value (RV)
The annual assumed rental value of a property that is used for business purposes.
Related Parties
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the
Council.
Reserves
Funds set aside for expenditure in future years. Certain reserves have constraints on how they can
be spent.
Revenue Expenditure
Expenditure on the day-to-day costs of providing services.
Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Grant from Central Government towards the cost of service provision.
Section 106
These are receipts received by the Council from developers for a specific purpose; they arise as a
result of a planning agreement between the Council and developer.
SORP (Statement of Recommended Practice)
The SORP is a code of practice that has been developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee
in accordance with the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) code of practice for the development of
Statements of Recommended Practice in accounting (SORP's).
Stocks
Items bought for consumption or resale, or raw materials, currently being held.
Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the services it provides for a period of
more than one year.
Useful Life
The period over which the local authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one
year.
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Independent auditor’s report to Members of East Northamptonshire Council
Opinion on the accounting statements
I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of East Northamptonshire Council for
the year ended 31 March 2010 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The accounting statements
comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Collection Fund and the related notes. These accounting statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
This report is made solely to the members of East Northamptonshire Council in accordance with
Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 49 of
the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies published by the Audit
Commission in April 2008.
Respective responsibilities of the Executive Director and auditor
The Executive Director's responsibilities for preparing the accounting statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice are set out in the
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts.
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the accounting statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of the
financial position of the Authority and its income and expenditure for the year.
I review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007. I report if it does
not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA/SOLACE or if the statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit of the accounting statements. I am
not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether the governance statement covers all risks
and controls. Neither am I required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
I read other information published with the accounting statements, and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited accounting statements. This other information comprises the
Explanatory Foreword. I consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounting statements. My responsibilities do
not extend to any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements and related notes. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Authority in the
preparation of the accounting statements and related notes, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I
considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounting statements and related notes.
Opinion
In my opinion the Authority's accounting statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2009: A Statement of Recommended Practice, of the financial position of
the Authority as at 31 March 2010 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.
Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of resources
Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance
and regularly to review the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s Responsibilities
I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have
been made by the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report to
you my conclusion in relation to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria for
principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008 and
updated in October 2009. I report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent
me from concluding that the Authority has made such proper arrangements. I am not required to
consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
Conclusion
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having regard to the
criteria for principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008
and updated in October 2009, and the supporting guidance, I am satisfied that, in all significant
respects, East Northamptonshire Council made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Certificate
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the
Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.
Neil Bellamy
Officer of the Audit Commission
Rivermead House
7 Lewis Court
Grove Park
Enderby
Leicestershire LE19 1SU
5 October 2010
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